
West Devon Council

Title: Summons
Date: Tuesday, 21st May, 2019

Time: 11.00 am

Venue: Chamber - Kilworthy Park

Full Members: Mayor Cllr Davies
Deputy Mayor Cllr Leech

Members: Cllr Ball
Cllr Bolton
Cllr Bridgewater
Cllr Cheadle
Cllr Coulson
Cllr Crozier
Cllr Daniel
Cllr Edmonds
Cllr Ewings
Cllr Heyworth
Cllr Hipsey
Cllr Jory
Cllr Kemp
Cllr Kimber
Cllr Moody

Cllr Mott
Cllr Moyse
Cllr Musgrave
Cllr Pearce
Cllr Ratcliffe
Cllr Renders
Cllr Ridgers
Cllr Samuel
Cllr Sellis
Cllr Southcott
Cllr Spettigue
Cllr Vachon
Cllr Wood
Cllr Yelland

Interests – 
Declaration and 
Restriction on 
Participation:

Members are reminded of their responsibility to declare any 
disclosable pecuniary interest not entered in the Authority's 
register or local non pecuniary interest which they have in any 
item of business on the agenda (subject to the exception for 
sensitive information) and to leave the meeting prior to 
discussion and voting on an item in which they have a 
disclosable pecuniary interest.

Committee 
administrator:

Member.Services@swdevon.gov.uk

Public Document Pack



Page No

1.  To elect The Mayor of the Borough for the ensuing year 

2.  To elect The Deputy Mayor of the Borough for the ensuing 
year 

3.  Apologies for absence 

4.  Declarations of Interest
Members are invited to declare any personal or disclosable 
pecuniary interests, including the nature and extent of such 
interests they may have in any items to be considered at 
this meeting.

If Councillors have any questions relating to predetermination, 
bias or interests in items on this Summons, then please contact 
the Monitoring Officer in advance of the meeting.

5.  Confirmation of Minutes
To approve and adopt as a correct record the Minutes of the 
Meeting of Council held on 26 March 2019

1 - 14

6.  To receive communications from the Mayor or person 
presiding 

7.  Business brought forward by or with the consent of the 
Mayor 

8.  Annual Adoption of the Council's Constitution 15 - 16

(NB to include approval of the Terms of Reference for the Invest 
to Earn Committee) 

9.  To respond to any questions submitted by the public and 
to receive deputations or petitions under Council 
Procedure Rule 21 

10.  To consider (any) Motions of which notice has been duly 
submitted by Members in accordance with Council 
Procedure Rule 15:

(a) From Cllr M Davies

‘That West Devon Borough Council recognises that we have a 



Page No

‘Climate Emergency’ and that urgent steps need to be taken 
to address all matters within the Borough which may affect 
climate change.

That this Council recognises that the crisis is both global and 
local and that Local Government has a role to play in 
promoting environmentally friendly policies.  To this end, it is 
recommended that a Working Group be established with 
cross-group membership to be decided by the Leader of this 
Council, in discussion with other political groupings.  To report 
back within three months with initial recommendations.’

11.  To consider (any) questions submitted under Council 
Procedure Rule 21. 

12.  To receive the Minutes of the following Committees, to 
note the delegated decisions and to consider the adoption 
of those Minutes which require approval: 

(a)  Council Tax Setting Panel - 22 February 2019 17 - 20

(b)  Minutes - O&S Committee - 26 March 2019 21 - 24

(c)  Minutes - O&S Committee - 2 April 2019 25 - 30

(d)  Minutes DM&L Committee - 26 March 2019 31 - 32

(e)  Minutes - DM&L Committee - 23 April 2019 33 - 40

13.  To appoint a Leader of the Council for the ensuing year 

14.  To appoint a Deputy Leader of the Council for the ensuing 
year 

15.  To report on the composition of political groups 

16.  To approve the Committee Structure for the coming year:

Audit 7 Members
Hub 9 Members (membership 

to include Leader and   
Deputy Leader) 

Overview & Scrutiny 15 Members
DM & Licensing 10 Members + Named 

Substitutes



Page No

Standards  5 Members
Invest to Earn * 3 Members

(* subject to approval of agenda item 8 (above)).
 

with all of the Borough Council Member appointments to 
the above Committees being politically balanced and with 
each Member being nominated to serve on only one of the 
Audit Committee; Hub Committee or Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee.

17.  To receive the appointments from the Political Groups of 
the Members they have selected to serve on the 
Committees.  To appoint (if any) the requisite number of 
Members from the Members of the Council who, at the 
date of this meeting, are not members of a Political Group 

41 - 42

18.  To appoint the Chairman and Vice-Chairman to the 
Committees of the Council for the ensuing year 

43 - 44

19.  To appoint representatives to the list of Outside Bodies for 
the ensuing year 

45 - 46

20.  To appoint representatives to the list of Other Groups for 
the ensuing year 

47 - 48

21.  Annual Report 49 - 68

PLEASE NOTE: A Procedural Note will be published and 
circulated prior to Council’s Annual Meeting and this will include 
information to enable full consideration of this agenda.



At the Meeting of the WEST DEVON BOROUGH COUNCIL held in the COUNCIL 
CHAMBER, KILWORTHY PARK, TAVISTOCK on TUESDAY the 26th day of MARCH 
2019 at 4.00pm pursuant to Notice given and Summons duly served.

Present Cllr M Davies – Mayor (In the Chair)
Cllr A F Leech – Deputy Mayor

Cllr R E Baldwin Cllr W G Cann OBE
Cllr R Cheadle Cllr D W Cloke
Cllr C Edmonds Cllr J Evans
Cllr L J G HockridgeCllr N Jory
Cllr P Kimber Cllr B Lamb
Cllr J R McInnes Cllr J B Moody
Cllr C Mott Cllr D E Moyse
Cllr C R Musgrave Cllr R J Oxborough
Cllr G Parker Cllr T G Pearce
Cllr P J Ridgers Cllr A Roberts
Cllr R F D Sampson Cllr L Samuel
Cllr P R Sanders Cllr J Sheldon
Cllr L Watts Cllr J Yelland

Chief Executive
Deputy Monitoring Officer
Senior Specialist – Democratic Services
Section 151 Officer
Devon Audit Partnership – Internal Audit Manager
Operational Manager – Environment Services

CM 59 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Apologies for absence were received from Cllrs K Ball, D K A Sellis and B 
Stephens.

CM 60 CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES
It was moved by Cllr P R Sanders, seconded by Cllr L Samuel and upon the 
motion being submitted to the Meeting was declared to be CARRIED and 
“RESOLVED that the Council agree the Minutes of the Meeting held on 12 
February 2019 as a true record.”

CM 61 DECLARATION OF INTEREST
At this point, the Deputy Monitoring Officer was asked to provide a 
statement to the Council that set out her reasons for granting a Dispensation 
on agenda item 10: ‘Adoption of the Plymouth and South West Devon Joint 
Local Plan’ (Minute CM 65 below refers).  In so doing, the Deputy Monitoring 
Officer informed that Members could be regarded as having, as a matter of 
law, a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest due to land ownership within the red 
line settlement boundaries by virtue of being residents of the Borough.  

Page 1

Agenda Item 5



For the avoidance of any doubt, the Deputy Monitoring Officer had deemed 
it appropriate to grant a Dispensation to enable Members to debate and 
vote on this agenda item.

However, in the event of any Member (or their spouse/partner) owning land 
in any of the specific areas that were to be allocated for development, then 
her blanket Dispensation would not apply and those Members would still be 
required to declare a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest.

The Mayor then proceeded to invite Members to declare any interests in the 
items of business to be considered during the course of the meeting and 
these were recorded as follows:-

Cllr T G Pearce declared a personal interest in Item 12: ‘Registered Provider 
Application’ (Minute CM 67 below refers) by virtue of being the current 
Chairman of Brentor Parish Council and remained in the meeting and took 
part in the debate and vote thereon;

Cllr J Yelland declared a personal interest in Item 13: ‘Public Toilet 
Closures’ (Minute CM 68 below refers) by virtue of being a member of 
Okehampton Town Council and remained in the meeting and took part in 
the debate and vote thereon;

CM 62 MAYOR’S ANNOUNCEMENTS
By way of a reminder, the Mayor advised the Council that his Awards 
presentation would be held on the rising of this meeting and confirmed that 
all Members were invited to attend this event. 

CM 63 URGENT BUSINESS
The Mayor advised the Council that he had agreed for one urgent item of 
business to be raised at this meeting.  The item related to a report entitled 
‘Appointment of Electoral Registration Officer and Returning Officer’ and 
was deemed necessary in light of the time constraints associated with this 
matter.

(a) Appointment of Electoral Registration Officer and Returning 
Officer
The Council proceeded to consider a report that sought its approval, 
with immediate effect, to the appointment of the Group Manager for 
Support Services and Customer First as the Electoral Registration 
Officer and Returning Officer.

In the ensuing discussion, a number of Members recognised that this 
was the last Council meeting for the Council’s current Electoral 
Registration Officer and Returning Officer and wished to put on record 
their thanks and appreciation to the dedication and service that she had 
given during her employ with the Council.

Page 2



It was then moved by Cllr P R Sanders, seconded by Cllr L Samuel and, 
upon being submitted to the Meeting, was declared to be CARRIED and 
“RESOLVED that, with effect from 1 April 2019, the Group Manager for 
Support Services and Customer First (Steve Mullineaux) be appointed 
as the Electoral Registration Officer and Returning Officer for West 
Devon Borough Council.”

CM 64 MINUTES OF COMMITTEES

a. Development Management & Licensing Committee – 26 
February 2019
It was moved by Cllr P R Sanders, seconded by Cllr A Roberts and 
upon being submitted to the Meeting was declared to be CARRIED 
and “RESOLVED that the Minutes of the 26 February 2019 meeting 
be received and noted”.

b. Overview and Scrutiny Committee – 26 February 2019
It was moved by Cllr J Yelland, seconded by Cllr R Cheadle and upon 
being submitted to the Meeting was declared to be CARRIED and 
“RESOLVED that the Minutes of the 26 February 2019 meeting be 
received and noted”.

c. Standards Committee – 5 March 2019
It was moved by Cllr A F Leech, seconded by Cllr J Yelland and upon 
being submitted to the Meeting was declared to be CARRIED and 
“RESOLVED that the Minutes of the 5 March 2019 meeting be 
received and noted, with the exception of Unstarred Minutes SC 3 
and SC 4”.

In respect of the Unstarred Minutes:

i. SC 3 Annual Report
It was moved by Cllr A F Leech, seconded by Cllr J Yelland and 
upon being submitted to the Meeting was declared to be 
CARRIED and “RESOLVED that Mr Trevor Kirkin and Mr Peter 
Boreham be appointed to serve as West Devon Borough Council 
Independent Persons from the Annual Meeting in May 2019 until 
the Annual Meeting in May 2023.”

ii. SC 4 Review of Procedure for Dealing with Standards 
Complaints
It was moved by Cllr A F Leech, seconded by Cllr J Yelland and 
upon being submitted to the Meeting was declared to be 
CARRIED and “RESOLVED that:

Page 3



1. with effect from the Annual Council meeting on 21 May 2019, 
the revised ‘Dealing with Standards Complaints’ procedure (as 
attached at Appendix A of the presented agenda report) be 
adopted subject to inclusion of the following minor 
amendments:

- That all reference to ‘dual-hatted’ Members be amended to 
read ‘multi-hatted’ Members; and

- That the email address for the Monitoring Officer be 
amended to read: monitoring.officer@swdevon.gov.uk; and

2. authority be delegated for the review of the associated Hearing 
Procedure to the Monitoring Officer.”

d. Audit Committee – 12 March 2019
It was moved by Cllr M Davies, seconded by Cllr B Lamb and upon 
being submitted to the Meeting was declared to be CARRIED and 
“RESOLVED that the Minutes of the 12 March 2019 meeting be 
received and noted, with the exception of Unstarred Minutes AC 38 
and AC 39”.

In respect of the Unstarred Minutes:

i. AC 38 Review of the Council’s Constitution: Rules of 
Procedure; Members’ Planning Code of Practice; and Petition 
Scheme

In discussion, some Members expressed their concerns over 
reference to the following section of the Planning Code of Practice:

‘You should not agree to any formal meeting with applicants, 
developers or groups of objectors without first discussing with the 
planning case officer and agreeing a course of action in writing.’

The Members proceeded to question what constituted a ‘formal 
meeting’.  In reply, the Deputy Monitoring Officer provided an 
assurance that this section was not suggesting that any Member 
should refuse to attend such a meeting.  However, Members were 
being advised to exercise caution in instances when they could be 
asked to give an opinion on the merits of a particular planning 
application. 

Having been moved by Cllr M Davies and seconded by Cllr B 
Lamb, it was then submitted to the Meeting and declared to be 
CARRIED and “RESOLVED that:

Page 4

mailto:monitoring.officer@swdevon.gov.uk


1. the amendments to Part 4 (Rules of Procedure) of the Council’s 
Constitution (as summarised in paragraph 2.5 of the agenda 
report presented to the Audit Committee and fully outlined at 
Appendix A to the published Committee minutes) be approved 
and formally adopted;

2. the draft Members’ Code of Good Practice – Planning (as 
attached at Appendix B to the published Committee minutes) 
be adopted;

3. the amended Rules for the Petition Scheme (as attached at 
Appendix C to the published Committee minutes) be adopted; 
and

4. the Political Structures Working Group be reconvened to:

a. review the roles of Hub Committee Members (paying 
particular attention to the circulation of information and 
communication with the wider membership);

b. assess the circumstances in which informal Hub Committee 
meetings take place in private;

c. look at the involvement of non-Hub Committee Members in 
the deliberations of the Hub Committee (to include how to 
best make use of non-Hub Committee Members’ expertise); 
and

d. review the extent of Delegation to the Hub Committee.”

ii. AC 39 Devon Audit Partnership Non-Voting Partner
It was moved by Cllr A F Leech, seconded by Cllr J Yelland and 
upon being submitted to the Meeting was declared to be 
CARRIED and “RESOLVED that:

1. the Council join the Devon Audit Partnership as a Non-voting 
Partner from 1 April 2019 (or as soon as is reasonably 
practicable thereafter); and

2. details of the Service Level Agreement be delegated to the 
Monitoring Officer and Section 151 Officer, in consultation with 
the lead Hub Committee Member for Support Services and the 
Chairman of the Audit Committee.

e. Hub Committee – 19 March 2019
It was moved by Cllr P R Sanders, seconded by Cllr L Samuel and 
upon being submitted to the Meeting was declared to be CARRIED 
and “RESOLVED that the Minutes of the 19 March 2019 meeting be 
received and noted, with the exception of Unstarred Minutes HC 84, 
HC 85 and HC 89.  

In respect of the Unstarred Minutes:

Page 5



i. HC 84 Peer Challenge Action Plan
It was moved by Cllr P R Sanders, seconded by Cllr L Samuel and 
upon being submitted to the Meeting was declared to be 
CARRIED and “RESOLVED that a Joint Working Group be 
convened and the draft Terms of Reference for that Group be 
approved as set out in Appendix B of the agenda report presented 
to the Hub Committee meeting.” 

ii. HC 85 Northern Outreach
It was moved by Cllr P R Sanders, seconded by Cllr L Samuel and 
upon being submitted to the Meeting was declared to be 
CARRIED and “RESOLVED that the Council:

1. support the Hub Committee preferred option for the Northern 
Outreach Service to reduce the service to a single day per 
week, with this being monitored for a three month period; and

2. note that a report will be presented back to the Hub Committee 
meeting on 16 July 2019 that includes the results of the 
monitoring, along with the results of the monitoring at 
Tavistock, to enable for a decision to be made on the future 
provision of the service.”

iii.HC 89 Accommodation Strategy
It was moved by Cllr P R Sanders, seconded by Cllr L Samuel and 
upon being submitted to the Meeting was declared to be 
CARRIED and “RESOLVED that:

1. the Council agree a future Accommodation Strategy that will 
consider all alternative accommodation options and get best 
value for the site;

2. a Member Working Group be formed comprising of six 
Members, to be selected by the Group Leaders, to determine 
their Terms of Reference and work through options and to 
make recommendations to the Hub Committee meeting on 16 
July 2019; and

3. the Group be tasked with giving consideration to each of the 
Options outlined at paragraph 4.1 of the agenda report that was 
presented to the Hub Committee meeting.”

CM 65 ADOPTION OF THE PLYMOUTH AND SOUTH WEST DEVON JOINT 
LOCAL PLAN
Consideration was given to a report that sought the formal adoption of the 
Plymouth and South West Devon Joint Local Plan (JLP).

Page 6



In their introductions, the Council’s representatives on the Joint Steering 
Group (JSG) paid tribute to those officers, fellow JSG Members and the 
Leaders of the three partner local authorities who had been so instrumental 
and visionary in reaching this significant milestone.

During the ensuing debate, reference was made to:-

(a) the Housing Land Supply.  Once the Plan had been adopted, Members 
noted that the Plymouth and South West Devon Plan area would then 
be able to demonstrate in excess of a 7 year Housing Land Supply.  As 
a consequence, it would now be a matter for Developers to have to 
demonstrate why the Council should deviate from its policy;

(b) the Plan having already been adopted by South Hams District and 
Plymouth City Councils;

(c) the production of a Design Guide Policy.  In response to a request, 
support was expressed for swift progress to be made on the production 
of a Design Guide Policy to supplement the JLP.

It was then moved by Cllr C Mott, seconded by Cllr G Parker and upon being 
submitted to the Meeting was declared to be CARRIED and “RESOLVED 
that:

1. the Plymouth and South West Devon Joint Local Plan and Policies Map 
be adopted; and

2. approval be given to the establishment of the Joint Local Plan 
Partnership Board in accordance with the Joint Local Plan governance 
arrangements as set out in the Plymouth and South West Devon Joint 
Local Plan – Delivery and Governance Paper.”

CM 66 INTERNAL AUDIT REPORT – TAVISTOCK HOTEL PROPOSAL
The Council considered a report that provided Members with the conclusions 
of the Devon Audit Partnership (DAP) review into the recent Tavistock Hotel 
Proposal.

As part of his introduction, the DAP Internal Audit Manager wished to thank 
those Members and officers who had taken part in the review.

In the ensuing debate, the following points were raised:-

(a) A number of Members wished to put on record their thanks to the 
Internal Audit Manager for conducting such a thorough and well 
balanced review and emphasised the importance of the Council taking 
the consequent recommendations seriously;

Page 7



(b) To reflect the conclusions of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
meeting earlier in the day (Minute O&S 108 refers), a recommendation 
was PROPOSED and SECONDED as follows:-

“That the Council:

1. accept the conclusions and ten recommendations contained in the 
Internal Audit Report (published March 2019);

2. ask officers of the Council, in consultation with lead Hub Committee 
Members, to prepare an Action Plan and commence implementation 
of recommendations forthwith and to submit this Plan, together with 
the progress made to date, at the next Council meeting (to be held 
on 21 May 2019);

3. request a meeting of the Political Structures Working Group during 
April 2019 (i.e. before the local elections on 2 May 2019) to consider 
in particular the use of unstarred minutes and the relationship 
between the Hub Committee and the Council and to report to the 
next Council meeting on 21 May 2019.” 

During the debate on the proposal, it became apparent that there was a 
difference of opinion over the timing of the Political Structures Working 
Group review and an amendment was therefore PROPOSED and 
SECONDED as follows:-

1. “That the conclusions and ten recommendations contained in the 
Internal Audit Report (March 2019) be accepted;

2. That officers of the Council, in consultation with lead Hub 
Committee Member, be asked to prepare an Action Plan and 
commence implementation of the recommendations forthwith and 
to submit the Plan, together with progress made to date at the 
Council meeting on 23 July 2019; and

3. That a meeting be requested (early in the 2019/20 Municipal Year) 
of the Political Structures Working Group to consider in particular 
the use of unstarred minutes and the relationship between the Hub 
Committee and the Council, with a report being presented back to 
the Council meeting on 23 July 2019.”

In support of the amendment, Members felt it was unrealistic to 
undertake such an important review before the local elections were 
held.  In addition, some Members did not feel it to be reasonable to ask 
the new Council (at its first meeting) to take decisions for which those 
newly elected Members would have no prior understanding.  In 
contrast, other Members felt it to be absolutely vital to ensure that the 
knowledge and experience of all current Members was utilised.

Page 8



As a compromise, it was suggested that all current Members (who were 
either retiring or did not retain their seat following the May elections) 
could provide their views to officers (either in writing or via an Exit 
Interview) and these would then be taken into account during the 
Working Group review.

When put to the vote, the amendment was declared CARRIED and 
therefore became the substantive motion;

(c) It was agreed that, once an Action Plan had been drafted, it should be 
circulated to all Members;

(d) With regard to ongoing monitoring, officers informed that Commercial 
Property had been identified by the Audit Committee as a matter that 
should be included as part of the 2019/20 Internal Audit Plan.

Upon being submitted to the Meeting, it was then declared to be CARRIED 
and “RESOLVED that:

1. the conclusions and ten recommendations contained in the Internal 
Audit Report (March 2019) be accepted;

2. officers of the Council, in consultation with lead Hub Committee 
Member, be asked to prepare an Action Plan and commence 
implementation of the recommendations forthwith and to submit the 
Plan, together with progress made to date at the Council meeting on 
23 July 2019; and

3. a meeting be requested (early in the 2019/20 Municipal Year) of the 
Political Structures Working Group to consider in particular the use of 
unstarred minutes and the relationship between the Hub Committee 
and the Council, with a report being presented back to the Council 
meeting on 23 July 2019.”

CM 67 REGISTERED PROVIDER APPLICATION
Members gave consideration to a report that sought Council approval to 
make a preliminary application to Homes England for ‘Registered Provider 
Status’.

In discussion, a local Ward Member asked for his thanks to be formally 
recorded to those officers who had been involved in the recent successful 
South Tawton affordable housing scheme.

It was then moved by Cllr A Roberts, seconded by Cllr P R Sanders and, 
upon being submitted to the Meeting, was declared to be CARRIED and 
“RESOLVED that:

Page 9



1. a preliminary application be made to Homes England for Registered 
Provider Status to enable the Council to apply for grant funding for 
affordable housing projects; and

2. officers be given delegated authority to make applications for individual 
schemes as and when the need arises.  (NB. the initial application will 
be for the Tavistock Temporary Accommodation development).” 

CM 68 PUBLIC TOILET CLOSURES
Consideration was given to a report that provided an update on the Public 
Toilet project and specifically the consultation that had been undertaken 
with those affected local town and parish councils.

During his introduction, the lead Hub Committee Member advised that:-

- whilst the recommendation remained in relation to the public toilets at 
Market Street, Okehampton, discussions were still ongoing with 
Okehampton Town Council.  As a result, the lead Member remained 
hopeful that a lease could be negotiated with the Town Council to 
ensure that the public toilets remained open.  In light of these 
discussions, the Member advised that these facilities would not be 
closed on 31 March 2019 as long as there still remained a possibility 
that an agreement could be reached with the Town Council;

- the local choice of Tavistock Town Council was to retain the Bedford 
Car Park public toilets.  Therefore, the Member informed that the 
recommendation was that Tavistock Bus Station public toilets should be 
closed;

- with regard to the Princetown facility, discussions were ongoing with 
Dartmoor National Park Authority.  The lead Member assured those in 
attendance that Dartmoor Forest Parish Council and the local Ward 
Member would be kept fully informed; and

- he was personally very appreciative of the positive approach adopted 
by local town and parish councils to resolve such a difficult subject 
matter.

In discussion, reference was made to:-

(a) the Yelverton facilities.  In respect of the Yelverton facilities, a local Ward 
Member advised that it was likely to be difficult for the legal agreement 
to be in place before 1 April 2019;

(b) the Market Street, Okehampton facilities.  A Member highlighted the 
importance of the Market Street facility remaining open and strongly 
hoped that a satisfactory agreement could be reached between the 
Borough Council and the Town Council;

Page 10



(c) the Princetown facilities.  In emphasising the amount of time and effort 
that had been wasted, a local Ward Member asked that her deep 
frustrations be formally recorded whereby it had only recently become 
apparent that the facilities at Princetown could not be closed;

(d) the impact on disabled bus users of closing the Tavistock Bus Station 
facilities.  Some Members asked that consideration be given to retaining 
at least one open toilet at the Bus Station for disabled users.  In reply, 
the lead Hub Committee Member gave an assurance that this would be 
given consideration;

(e) adequate signage being erected.  When questioned, officers confirmed 
that appropriate signage would be put in place that advised that a public 
toilet facility had been closed.

It was then moved by Cllr R F D Sampson, seconded by Cllr P R Sanders 
and, upon being submitted to the Meeting, was declared to be CARRIED 
and “RESOLVED that:

1. Following consultation with all affected town and parish councils to 
consider alternative ways of providing the service, approval be given to 
the closure of the following public toilets where feasible alternatives have 
not been found:

- Buckland Monachorum: Bedford Bridge;
- Okehampton: Market Street; and
- Tavistock: Bus Station; and

2. Whilst the recommendation to approve closure at Princetown remains, 
the Council continues to provide a limited facility in Princetown whilst 
alternative uses of the building are explored with Dartmoor National Park 
Authority and the Duchy of Cornwall, in line with the terms of the current 
lease and head lease arrangements.”

CM 69 2019/20 CAPITAL STRATEGY, 2019/20 INVESTMENT STRATEGY AND 
2019/20 TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 
A report was presented that sought Council approval of the draft:

- 2019/20 Capital Strategy;
- 2019/20 Investment Strategy; and
- 2019/20 Treasury Management Strategy.

With no questions or comments raised, it was then moved by Cllr C 
Edmonds, seconded by Cllr P R Sanders and, upon being submitted to the 
Meeting, was declared to be CARRIED and “RESOLVED that approval be 
given to:

Page 11



1. The 2019/20 Capital Strategy (as outlined at Appendix A of the 
presented agenda report);

2. The 2019/20 Investment Strategy (as outlined at Appendix B of the 
presented agenda report); and

3. The 2019/20 Treasury Management Strategy (as outlined at Appendix 
C of the presented agenda report).”

CM 70 COMMERCIAL INVESTMENT PROPERTY – UPDATE AND 
MONITORING REPORT
A report was presented that considered the performance of the Council’s 
Commercial Investment Property portfolio to date and the associated risks 
moving forward.

In discussion, reference was made to:-

(a) the recommendations of the recent Devon Audit Partnership review 
(Minute CM 66 above refers).  When questioned, the lead Hub 
Committee Member confirmed that he was fully supportive of the 
recommendation to formalise the governance arrangements that 
underpinned the Invest to Earn Working Group.  Furthermore, the 
Member was also in support of any future amendments to the 
Commercial Property Strategy being presented to the Council as 
standalone agenda items rather than unstarred Hub Committee 
minutes;

(b) the intention to extend the Commercial Property portfolio in order to 
spread the exposure to risk.  Moving forward, a number of Members 
expressed the importance of continuing to strive to meet this objective.

It was then moved by Cllr N Jory, seconded by Cllr P R Sanders and, upon 
being submitted to the Meeting, was declared to be CARRIED and 
“RESOLVED that the performance and risks of the Commercial Property 
portfolio to date be noted.”

CM 71 PAY POLICY STATEMENT AND PAY AND REWARD STRATEGY 
2019/20
In accordance with the Localism Act 2011, consideration was given to a 
report that proposed that the Council adopted its Pay Policy Statement and 
Pay and Reward Strategy.

With no questions or issues being raised, it was then moved by Cllr P R 
Sanders, seconded by Cllr L Samuel and, upon being submitted to the 
Meeting, was declared to be CARRIED and “RESOLVED that:

1. The Pay Policy Statement for 2019/20 (as attached at Appendix A of 
the presented agenda report) be adopted; and

Page 12



2. The Pay and Reward Strategy for 2019/20 (as attached at Appendix B 
of the presented agenda report) be adopted.”

CM 72 REVISED POLITICAL COMPOSITION OF THE COUNCIL
Members considered a report that outlined the revised political composition 
of the Council for the remainder of the 2018/19 Municipal Year.

With no questions or issues raised, it was then moved by Cllr P R Sanders, 
seconded by Cllr R F D Sampson and, upon being submitted to the Meeting, 
was declared to be CARRIED and “RESOLVED that, for the remainder of 
the 2018/19 Municipal Year:

1. the Political Composition of the Council be noted as follows:

- Conservative Group: 19 Members;
- Independent Group: 10 Members; and
- Non-aligned: 2 Members; and

2. the membership of Council Committees be unchanged, with the 
political balance rules being disapplied for the Development 
Management and Licensing and Standards Committees.

CM 73 MAYOR’S CONCLUDING REMARKS
As this was anticipated to be the last Council meeting of the 2018/19 
Municipal Year, and the local elections would have taken place before the 
Council was to meet again, the Mayor thanked all Members and officers for 
their commitment and diligence not just during his year of office, but also for 
the preceding four years of the current administration.  The Mayor 
proceeded to wish those retiring Members well for the future and those 
Members who were seeking re-election good luck in their respective 
endeavours.

In reply, other Members wished to thank the Mayor for the way he had 
managed the office this year and too wished him every success and 
happiness in the future.

Finally, some longstanding retiring Members also wished to thank their 
fellow Members and officers for the help and support that they had received 
during their respective terms of office on the Borough Council.

(The Meeting terminated at 6.10 pm)

___________________
Mayor

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



Invest to Earn Committee 

 

Composition and Membership: 

 

               Number: The Invest to Earn Committee will comprise three Members  

               Eligibility: The Leader and Deputy Leader cannot be members of the Invest to Earn 

Committee  

Chairman: the Chainman will be appointed at the Annual Meeting 

Quorum: Two members to be present throughout the meeting  

Casting Vote: The Chairman of the meeting will have a casting vote 

 

Responsibilities 

To be responsible for the following areas: 

• To consider and review annually the Terms of Reference for the Invest to Earn 

Committee  

• To consider and review the Council’s Commercial Property Strategy for the 

Acquisition of Assets 

 

and to make any necessary recommendations to the Hub Committee or Council 

• To ensure that Officers regularly review the Due Diligence process to be followed 

by Members, Officers and external advisors and experts when considering 

Acquisition of Assets   

• To consider and evaluate on a case by case basis (in accordance with the 

Commercial Property Strategy) proposals for the acquisition of assets and to make 

any necessary recommendations to the Head of Paid Service and Section 151 

Officer (who will consult the Leader of the Council and Chairman of the Invest to 

Earn Committee before making any decision).  

 

Page 15

Agenda Item 8



• To ensure that relevant Ward Members are briefed on proposed acquisitions 

before a final decision is made to proceed with the Acquisition of an Asset.  

• To report to the Hub Committee on the activities of the Invest to Earn Committee 

on a six monthly basis  

 

NB. Commercial development on Council land falls within the remit of the Hub 

Committee  

 

Page 16



CTSP 22.2.19

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE COUNCIL TAX SETTING PANEL
HELD AT KILWORTHY PARK, TAVISTOCK ON FRIDAY 22 FEBRUARY 2019

MEMBERS

* Cllr P R Sanders - Chairman

* Cllr M Davies *  Cllr R F D Sampson

Officers in attendance:
                  S151Officer Strategic Finance Lead; Customer Contact Centre Manager; 

Specialist Finance and Specialist Democratic Services 

   Apologies for absence:
Cllr L Samuel 

                            

CTSP.1/18    DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Members were invited to declare any interests in the items of business 
to be considered during the course of the meeting but none was made.

CTSP.2/18 DECLARATION OF THE COUNCIL TAX BASE AND INDIVIDUAL 
TAX BASES FOR TOWNS AND PARISHES: 2019/20

Consideration was given to a report that calculated and set out the 
Council Tax for 2019/20, having taken into account the precepts as 
notified from Devon County Council, Devon and Cornwall Police and 
Crime Commissioner, Devon and Somerset Fire and Rescue Authority, 
and the Town and Parish Councils.  

The Strategic Lead Finance asked Members to note that whilst the 
report stated in para 2.2 (iii) that the Police and Crime Panel met on 8 
February 2019 to set the precept, they did in fact meet to discuss the 
Police and Crime Commissioner’s budget and Council Tax precept, 
which the Panel duly supported.

During discussion, Members noted that a small number of Parish 
Councils had reduced their precept for 2019/20.

It was then:

RESOLVED

1. That it be noted that in December 2018 the Senior Leadership 
Team, under delegated authority from full Council, approved the 
Council Tax Base for the year 2019/20:

Page 17

Agenda Item 12a



CTSP 22.2.19

(a)for the whole Council area as 20,176.57 in accordance with 
regulation 3 of the Local Authorities (Calculation of Council 
Tax Base)(England) Regulations 2012; and

(b)for dwellings in those parts of its area to which a Parish 
Precept relates in accordance with regulation 6 of the Local 
Authorities (Calculation of Council Tax Base) (England) 
Regulations 2012 (as outlined at Appendix A of the presented 
agenda report);

2. That the Council Tax requirement for West Devon Borough 
Council’s own purposes for 2019/20 (excluding Parish precepts) 
is calculated at £4,673,499 (as outlined at Appendix B of the 
presented agenda report);

3. That the following amounts are calculated by the Council for the 
year 2019/20 in accordance with Sections 31 to 36 of the Local 
Government Finance Act 1992 and the Localism Act 2011 (as 
outlined at Appendix B of the presented agenda report):

(a) £27,103,420 being the aggregate of the amounts which the 
Council estimates for the items set out in Section 31A (2) of 
the Act taking into account all precepts issued to it by 
Parish/Town Council (Gross expenditure including parish 
precepts);

(b) £20,976,884 being the aggregate of the amounts which the 
Council estimates for the items set out in Section 31A (3) of 
the Act (Total income including Business Rates and Council 
Tax surplus);

(c) £6,126,536 being the amount by which the aggregate at 3(a) 
above exceeds the aggregate at 3(b) above, calculated by the 
Council in accordance with Section 31A (4) of the Act as its 
Council Tax requirement for the year (Item R in the formula in 
Section 31B of the Act (Council Tax requirement including 
parish precepts;

(d) £303.65 being the amount at 3(c)above (Item R), all divided 
by the Council Tax base (1(a) above) in accordance with 
Section 31B of the Act, as the basic amount of its Council Tax 
for the year (Average Band D Council Tax for West Devon 
Borough Council and parishes);

(e) £1,453,037 being the aggregate amount of all special items 
(Parish Precepts) referred to in Section 34(1) of the Act (as 
per the attached Appendix C – Parish Precepts);

(f) £231.63 being the amount at 3(d) above less the result given 
by dividing the amount at 3e by the Council Tax base (1(a) 
above), calculated by the Council, in accordance with Section 
34(2) of the Act, as the basic amount of its Council Tax for the 

Page 18



CTSP 22.2.19

year for dwellings in those parts of its area to which no Parish 
precept relates (Band D Council Tax for West Devon Borough 
Council only).

4. That it be noted the County Council, the Police and Crime 
Commissioner and the Fire Authority have issued precepts to 
the Council in accordance with Section 40 of the Local 
Government Finance Act 1992 for each of the categories of 
dwellings as shown below:

Valuation Bands
Precepting 
authority

A
£

B
£

C
£

D
£

E
£

F
£

G
£

H
£

Devon County 
Council’s tax 
requirements

 922.86  1,076.67 1,230.48 1,384.29 1,691.91 1,999.53  2,307.15  2,768.58

Police & Crime
Commissioner’s 
tax requirements

 141.52 165.11    188.69    212.28  259.45          306.63    353.80     424.56

Devon & Somerset 
Fire & Rescue 
Authority’s tax 
requirements

 57.68  67.29
    
  76.91

    
  86.52   105.75

  
 124.97

  
 144.20

  
 173.04

5. That the Council, in accordance with Sections 30 and 36 of the 
Local Government Finance Act 1992, hereby sets the amounts 
of Council Tax for the year 2019/20 for each of the categories 
of dwellings shown at Appendix D (total of all valuation band 
council taxes for West Devon Borough Council including 
parishes, county, police and crime commissioner and fire 
authority);

6. That the Council concluded that the basic amount of Council Tax 
for West Devon Borough Council for 2019/20 is not excessive in 
accordance with principles approved under Section 52ZB Local 
Government Finance Act 1992 (see calculation at Appendix B).

(Meeting commenced at 10.00am and concluded at 10.15am).

________________
     Chairman

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



At a Meeting of the OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE held at the 
Council Chamber, Council Offices, Kilworthy Park, Drake Road, 
TAVISTOCK on TUESDAY the 26th day of MARCH 2019 at 9.00 am.

Present: Cllr J Yelland – Chairman
Cllr R Cheadle – Vice-Chairman

Cllr R E Baldwin Cllr D W Cloke
Cllr J Evans Cllr P Kimber
Cllr J B Moody Cllr D E Moyse
Cllr C R Musgrave Cllr G Parker
Cllr T G Pearce Cllr J Sheldon

Chief Executive
Group Manager – Customer First and Support 
Services
Group Manager – Business Development
Devon Audit Partnership – Internal Audit 
Manager
Senior Specialist – Democratic Services

Also in Attendance: Cllrs W G Cann OBE, C Edmonds, B Lamb, A 
Roberts, R F D Sampson, L Samuel and P R 
Sanders

* O&S 104 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Apologies for absence for this meeting were received from Cllrs J R 
McInnes, P J Ridgers and D K A Sellis

* O&S 105 CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES
The minutes of the Meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee held 
on 26 February 2019 were confirmed and signed by the Chairman as a true 
and correct record.

* O&S 106 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
Members and officers were invited to declare any interests in the items of 
business to be considered during the course of this meeting, but there were 
none made.

* O&S 107 PUBLIC FORUM
There were no issues raised during the Public Forum session.

Page 21

Agenda Item 12b



O&S 108 DEVON AUDIT PARTNERSHIP REPORT – TAVISTOCK HOTEL 
PROPOSAL
The Committee considered a report that provided Members with the 
conclusions of the Devon Audit Partnership (DAP) review into the recent 
Tavistock Hotel Proposal.

In his introduction, the DAP Internal Audit Manager detailed each aspect of 
the methodology, findings, conclusions and recommendations that were 
contained within his report.  In so doing, he wished to thank those Members 
and officers who had taken part in the review.

During the ensuing debate, reference was made to:-

(a) consultation with the local business and voluntary sectors.  When 
questioned, the Internal Audit Manager advised that he had found very 
little evidence to suggest that prior discussions had been carried out with 
relevant local authorities or the local business and voluntary sectors;

(b) the drive for openness and transparency.  The tension for Councils 
between acting in the role of a Commercial Developer and the need to act 
in an open and transparent manner was recognised.  In this particular 
instance, officers acknowledged that the Council had not got its 
messaging correct but also emphasised that it had been bound by 
commercial confidentiality;

(c) outstanding payments.  Officers clarified that there were no further 
payments to be made that were associated with this proposal;

(d) the meeting held between lead officers and their Development 
Management colleagues.  Officers confirmed that the meeting that had 
been held in June 2018 had lasted two and a half hours and had 
considered a number of different projects.  Whilst the Internal Audit 
Manager had seen some notes arising from this meeting, Members were 
advised that the list of questions that had been asked at this meeting were 
not available;

(e) the informality of the Invest to Earn Working Group.  The Internal Audit 
Manager advised that, whilst the report was recommending that 
consideration be given to the Group becoming a formal Committee, he 
was assured that the meetings that had been held were conducted 
professionally.  However, moving forward, his report was recommending 
that consideration be given to establishing the Group as a formal 
Committee of the Council;

(f) the success of the Council’s Commercial Property Strategy.  Whilst 
shortcomings had been identified in this particular proposal, the Chief 
Executive reminded the Committee that the Council’s overall Strategy had 
been a big success and was currently projected to contribute an annual 
net revenue return of £274,000 to the Council;

Page 22



(g) a motion was PROPOSED and SECONDED as follows:

‘That the Council be RECOMMENDED to accept the conclusions and ten 
recommendations contained in the Internal Audit Report (published 
March 2019).’

During the debate on the motion, an amendment was then PROPOSED 
and SECONDED as follows:

‘That the Council be RECOMMENDED:

1. to accept the conclusions and ten recommendations contained in the 
Internal Audit Report (published March 2019);

2. that officers of the Council, in consultation with lead Hub Committee 
Members, be asked to prepare an Action Plan and commence 
implementation of recommendations forthwith and to submit this Plan, 
together with the progress made to date, at the next Council meeting 
(to be held on 21 May 2019); and

3. to request a meeting of the Political Structures Working Group during 
April 2019 (i.e. before the local elections on 2 May 2019) to consider 
in particular the use of unstarred minutes and the relationship between 
the Hub Committee and the Council and to report to the next Council 
meeting on 21 May 2019.’

In introducing his amendment, the proposer highlighted that:-

- the first two parts of his amendment mirrored the approach of the 
successful leisure contract process;

- the ten recommendations would require different timescales for 
implementation and an Action Plan would help to ensure (and 
monitor) progress;

- the purpose of the third part of the amendment being to ensure that 
the knowledge and experience of current Members was utilised.

During the debate on the amendment, the following points were raised:-

(a) Some doubts were expressed over whether or not it was realistic for 
the Political Structures Working Group to be convened and reach a 
consensus before the local elections on 2 May 2019;

(b) It was agreed that, once prepared, the draft Action Plan should be 
circulated to all Members;

Page 23



(c) In the event of a Panel being established to decide whether any Hub 
Committee Unstarred Minutes were deemed to be so significant that 
they warranted being a standalone agenda item at the next Council 
meeting, a Member asked that consideration be given to the Leader 
of the Second Largest Political Group also being involved in this 
process; 

(d) The view was also expressed that the format of Informal Council 
meetings should be revisited, with consideration again being given to 
the merits of Members receiving advanced notice of discussion topics 
and the circulation of notes (and a list of attendees) following each 
session;

At this point, the proposer and seconder of the original motion confirmed 
their support for inclusion of the amendment and it therefore became the 
substantive motion.

Prior to inviting a vote on the substantive motion, a number of Members 
wished to put on record their thanks to the Internal Audit Manager for 
conducting such an excellent piece of work.

It was then:

RESOLVED

That the Council be RECOMMENDED:

1. to accept the conclusions and ten recommendations contained in the 
Internal Audit Report (published March 2019);

2. that officers of the Council, in consultation with lead Hub Committee 
Members, be asked to prepare an Action Plan and commence 
implementation of recommendations forthwith and to submit this Plan, 
together with the progress made to date, at the next Council meeting (to 
be held on 21 May 2019); and

3. to request a meeting of the Political Structures Working Group during April 
2019 (i.e. before the local elections on 2 May 2019) to consider in 
particular the use of unstarred minutes and the relationship between the 
Hub Committee and the Council and to report to the next Council meeting 
on 21 May 2019.

(The meeting terminated at 10.25 am)

_________________
Chairman

Page 24



 
 

At a Meeting of the OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE held at the 
Council Chamber, Council Offices, Kilworthy Park, Drake Road, 
TAVISTOCK on TUESDAY the 2nd day of APRIL 2019 at 2.00 pm. 

 
Present:   Cllr J Yelland – Chairman 

Cllr R Cheadle – Vice-Chairman 
 

    Cllr D W Cloke  Cllr P Kimber    
Cllr D E Moyse  Cllr C R Musgrave 

 Cllr G Parker   Cllr T G Pearce 
 Cllr J Sheldon 

     
Chief Executive 
Group Manager – Customer First and Support 
Services 
Section 151 Officer 
Commissioning Manager 
Head of Place Making Practice 
Assets – Specialist 
Senior Specialist – Democratic Services 
Fusion Leisure Representatives 
 

         
Also in Attendance: Cllrs W G Cann OBE, C Edmonds, N Jory, B 

Lamb, A F Leech, C Mott, R F D Sampson and 
P R Sanders 

 
    
* O&S 109 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

Apologies for absence for this meeting were received from Cllrs R E 
Baldwin, J Evans, J R McInnes, J B Moody, P J Ridgers and D K A Sellis 

 
 
* O&S 110 CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES 

The minutes of the Meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee held 
on 26 March 2019 were confirmed and signed by the Chairman as a true 
and correct record. 

 
 
* O&S 111 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members and officers were invited to declare any interests in the items of 
business to be considered during the course of this meeting, but there were 
none made. 

 
 
* O&S 112 PUBLIC FORUM 
 There were no issues raised during the Public Forum session. 
 
 

Page 25

Agenda Item 12c



 
 

* O&S 113 HUB COMMITTEE FORWARD PLAN 
Members considered the latest version of the Hub Committee Forward Plan 
and noted its contents without any further comment. 

 
 
* O&S 114 LEISURE CONTRACT – FUSION ANNUAL REPORT 2018 

The Committee considered a report that provided Members with a 
performance review summary for last year from Fusion Lifestyle in the 
management of all six leisure centres across West Devon and South Hams. 
 
As part of the presentation that was delivered to the Committee, reference was 
made to the following future priorities: 

 
- The aim for Parklands Intencity studio to attract new clientele from a wider 

catchment area; 
- To Improve links with existing clubs and organisations via Partnership 

Working with Okehampton Community Recreation Association (OCRA), 
particularly in Tavistock; 

- To Introduce a GP referral scheme at Meadowlands; 
- To improve links with schools to provide sporting facilities for their needs 

(including sports days, swimming galas and one-off events); and 
- That, in accordance with their Key Performance Indicators: 

o To increase total participation, membership and swim school figures by 
10-15%; 

o To increase target group participation by 10-15% for: Under 16s, those 
aged over 60, disabled users and females; 

o To increase the customer satisfaction score by 3-5%; and 
o To maintain the Quest Accreditation at each Leisure Centre. 

 
During the ensuing debate, reference was made to:- 
 
(a) the partnership working with OCRA.  When questioned, the 

representatives confirmed that they were wholly committed to continuing 
to work with OCRA and proceeded to pay tribute to the work undertaken 
by that organisation; 
 

(b) the future focus for Fusion.  In addition to increasing participation levels, 
the representatives informed that the future focus for Leisure was on 
rebuilding confidence and trust within the local communities within West 
Devon; 

 
(c) use of apprenticeships.  Having been informed that Fusion was 

particularly keen on the employment of apprentices, a number of 
Members welcomed the initiatives that were being used by the 
organisation; 

 
(d) the potential conflict between increasing outreach services and increasing 

leisure centre participation.  Whilst acknowledging the potential conflict, 
the representatives advised that the overriding mantra of Fusion was: 

Page 26



 
 

‘more people, more active, more often’.  In response to a specific query, 
the representatives confirmed that they were very happy to engage and 
develop an improved outreach service in Chagford; 

 
(e) the competitive nature of the leisure industry.  The representatives 

confirmed that they welcomed non-aggressive competition, as it led to a 
lack of complacency and an improvement in service standards; 

 
(f) the moveable floor at Parklands Leisure Centre.  The Committee received 

an update on the moveable floor and was assured that the organisation 
remained committed to developing the centre (and swimming pool) at 
Parklands Leisure Centre.  The representatives also acknowledged that 
it was now timely to re-open dialogue with Swim England. 

 
In conclusion, the Committee thanked the representatives for their 
informative presentation and responses to Member questions and looked 
forward to seeing how the contract evolved in the next few years. 

 
It was then: 
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the content of the Annual Report for 2018 and the proposals for 2019 
be noted. 

 
 
O&S 115 CUSTOMER SATISFACTION ACTION PROGRESS 

The Committee considered a report that detailed the progress that had been 
made to date in improving customer satisfaction. 
 
In discussion, the following points were raised:- 
 
(a) The Committee welcomed the ongoing downward trend of call volume 

numbers that were being received by the Contact Centre; 
 

(b) Members cited some examples of difficulties that they had experienced in 
accessing the Member direct dial hotline.  In response, the Committee 
was reminded that the localities email inbox was a very useful tool to use  
as a first point of contact, but the issue of the hotline number would be 
looked into outside of this meeting; 

 
(c) With regard to reference in the presented agenda report to: ‘addressing 

avoidable customer contact’, the Committee felt that this was an 
unfortunate phrase and should be changed for future progress reports; 

 
(d) Officers confirmed that discussions were currently taking place with both 

Design colleagues and the Council’s external website provider in an 
attempt to improve the format and layout of the website to ensure that it 
was more reader and user friendly. 

Page 27



 
 

 
In conclusion, the Committee welcomed both the progress that was being 
made (and the corporate emphasis that was being given) to improving 
customer satisfaction and wished to thank the Commissioning Manager for 
her hard work in this regard. 
 
It was then: 
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the Hub Committee be RECOMMENDED to: 
 
1. note and comment on the progress made to date in improving customer 

satisfaction (as detailed in section 3 of the presented agenda report); and 
 

2. endorse the next steps (as outlined in section 5 of the presented agenda 
report). 

 
 

* O&S 116 JOINT LOCAL PLAN: STANDING AGENDA ITEM 
 
In discussion, the Committee recognised that the Joint Local Plan (JLP) had 
now been adopted by the three partner local authorities: Plymouth City 
Council; South Hams District Council; and West Devon Borough Council.  As 
a result, a debate ensued as to how frequently the Committee should receive 
updates in the future.  Whilst some Members were of the view that it would 
now be more appropriate for the Committee to receive updates on a quarterly 
basis, the majority view was that, at least for the foreseeable future, updates 
should be retained as a standing agenda item. 
 
Following the adoption of the JLP, officers also highlighted that great focus 
was now being given to the creation of a Development Plan Document on 
Settlement Boundaries and a Supplementary Planning Document that 
included formal guidance on Conservation and Design. 
 
 

* O&S 117 FINANCIAL STABILITY REVIEW GROUP UPDATE: STANDING 
AGENDA ITEM 

 
 The Committee received a report arising from the Group meeting held on 5 

March 2019 that summarised that: 
 

- progress was being made; 
- there was no room for complacency; 
- there were no surpluses available; and 
- the financial environment continued to be challenging. 

 
 
 

Page 28



 
 

In discussion, reference was made to:- 
 
(a) the estimated figures.  By way of caution, the Committee noted that the 

figures that were referred to in the Group report were only projections at 
this time; 
 

(b) the importance of the Review Group.  In support of the work that had been 
undertaken to date, a number of Members emphasised the importance of 
the Review Group being retained following the local elections in May 
2019.  In addition, the Committee paid tribute to the Group Members, who 
it was recognised had been instrumental in making strides to improve the 
financial position of the Council. 

 
 
* O&S 118 TASK AND FINISH GROUP UPDATES 

Since there were no active Task and Finish Groups at this time, there were 
no updates given to this Panel meeting. 

 
 
* O&S 119 MEMBER LEARNING AND DEVELOPMENT OPPORTUNITIES ARISING 

FROM THIS MEETING 
 The Committee recognised that the key focus for Member Learning and 

Development in the short-term would be the Induction Programme following 
the upcoming local elections. 

 
 
* O&S 120 CHAIRMAN’S CONCLUDING COMMENTS 
 As this was anticipated to be the last Committee meeting of the 2018/19 

Municipal Year, the Chairman thanked all Members and the lead officers for 
their commitment and diligence during the last four years. 

 
 In reply, other Members wished to thank the Chairman for her hard work 

and commitment that had helped to improve the Council’s Overview and 
Scrutiny function. 

 
 

(The meeting terminated at 3.30 pm) 
 

_________________ 
Chairman 

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



At a Meeting of the DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT & LICENSING 
COMMITTEE held at the Council Chamber, Council Offices, Kilworthy 
Park, Drake Road, TAVISTOCK on TUESDAY the 26th day of MARCH 
2019 at 11.00am 

 
Present:   Cllr P R Sanders – Chairman 
    Cllr A Roberts – Vice Chairman 
         
   Cllr R E Baldwin  Cllr W G Cann OBE 
   Cllr C Mott   Cllr D E Moyse 
   Cllr G Parker   Cllr T G Pearce 
   Cllr J Yelland 

    
   Planning Senior Specialist (WO) 
   Planning Specialists (BD) 

Legal Advisor (PD) 
Senior Specialist Democratic Services (DW) 

 
  Other Members also in attendance: Cllrs J Evans and J Sheldon 
 
 
*DM&L 39 DECLARATION OF INTEREST 

Members were invited to declare any interests in the items of business 
to be considered and the following were made: 
 
Cllr T G Pearce declared a personal interest in all applications by virtue 
of being a Member of the Devon Building Control Partnership.  He 
remained in the meeting and took part in the debate and vote on the 
item. 

 
 
*DM&L 40 CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES 

The Minutes of the Development Management and Licensing Committee 
Meeting held on 26 February 2019 were confirmed and signed by the 
Chairman as a correct record.  

 
 
*DM&L 41 PLANNING PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 
 Members were presented with the latest Performance Indicator data.   
 

The Planning Senior Specialist introduced the data and, in response to 
questions, made the following points:- 
 
(a) It was confirmed that the indicator relating to ‘number of planning 

applications registered’ was following a very similar trend to the 
previous year.  Since Planning Fee income was higher in 
comparison to 2017/18, it was noted that more significant major 
planning applications had been registered during this year; 
 

(b) Whilst officers continued to be incredibly busy, there was a general 
feeling that case workloads were slightly more manageable than in 
previous months.   

 
 

Page 31

Agenda Item 12d



*DM&L 42 PLANNING, LISTED BUILDING, TREE PRESERVATION ORDER 
AND ENFORCEMENT REPORTS 

 
The Committee proceeded to consider the application that had been 
prepared by the Development Management Specialist and considered 
also the comments of the Town Council together with other 
representations received, which were listed within the presented agenda 
report and summarised below, and RESOLVED that: 

 
(a) Application No:  2243/18/FUL Ward: Tavistock South West 

 
Site Address: 83 Plymouth Road, Tavistock PL19 8BZ 
 
To form a new dwelling by the subdivision of an existing dwelling 
 
Case Officer Update:  Natural England consulted and raised no 
objections, subject to inclusion of a relevant condition – confirmation 
given that appropriate condition had been included.     
 
Speakers included: Objector – Mr David Parker; Supporter – Mrs Fiona 
Maddock; and local Ward Member – Cllr Parker (NB. Cllr Evans had 
declared a personal interest in this application) 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   Conditional Approval 

 
Members discussed in detail the planning merits of the proposal and 
particular concerns were raised over the adequacy and appropriateness 
of the on-site parking and vehicular turning arrangements.  In addition, 
some Members expressed their belief that the proposals, if conditionally 
approved, would result in an outdoor amenity space that was too 
cramped when considering the size of the resultant dwellings. 

 
COMMITTEE DECISION:   Refusal 
 
 

  Reason: 
The new dwelling by reason of the inadequacy of the parking and turning 
area and insufficient area and quality of outdoor amenity space for the 
size of the dwellings would result in a cramped and undesirable form of 
development that would not provide for the needs of the occupants and 
harm the locality contrary to Local Plan Policy H28, Core Strategy 
Policies SP1 and SP20 and Policies DEV1, DEV8 and DEV10 of the 
emerging South West Devon Joint Local Plan 

 
 
*DM&L 43 PLANNING APPEALS UPDATE 

The Committee received and noted the updated list of Planning Appeals, 
including Enforcement Appeals. 

 
 

(The Meeting terminated at 12.35 pm) 
 

______________________ 
Chairman 

Page 32



At a Meeting of the DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT & LICENSING 
COMMITTEE held at the Council Chamber, Council Offices, Kilworthy 
Park, Drake Road, TAVISTOCK on TUESDAY the 23rd day of APRIL 
2019 at 10.30am 

 
 

Present:   Cllr P R Sanders – Chairman 
    Cllr A Roberts – Vice Chairman 
         
   Cllr R E Baldwin  Cllr W G Cann OBE 
   Cllr J I G Hockridge  Cllr C Mott  
   Cllr D E Moyse  Cllr G Parker  
   Cllr T G Pearce  Cllr J Yelland 

    
   Head of Practice Development Management (PW) 

Planning Senior Specialist (AHS) 
   Planning Specialist (BD) 

Legal Advisor (BF) 
Highways Officer (PT) 
Strategic Planning Specialist (PB) 
Affordable Housing Senior Specialist (AR) 
Head of Place Making Practice (TJ) 
Specialist Democratic Services (KT) 

 
  Other Members also in attendance: Cllrs P Kimber and T Leech 
 
 
 
*DM&L 44 DECLARATION OF INTEREST 

Members were invited to declare any interests in the items of business 
to be considered and the following were made: 
 
Cllr J Yelland declared a personal interest in applications 2646/18/ARM:  
Re-advertisement (Revised Plans and Description) Reserved Matters 
application seeking approval of appearance, landscaping, scale and 
layout for 111 dwellings (pursuant to outline permission 4059/16/VAR);  
2647/18/ARM:  Re-advertisement (Revised Plans and Description) 
Reserved Matters application seeking approval of appearance, 
landscaping, scale and layout for 17 dwellings (pursuant to outline 
permission 4059/16/VAR); 2646/18/ARM:  Re-advertisement (Revised 
Plans and Description) Reserved Matters application seeking approval 
of appearance, landscaping, scale and layout for 6 dwellings (pursuant 
to outline permission 4059/16/VAR), by virtue of being a Member of 
Okehampton Town Council who had also debated the application.  Cllr 
Yelland abstained at the Town Council meeting and therefore took part 
in the debate and vote on each item; 
 
Cllr T G Pearce declared a personal interest in all applications by virtue 
of being a Member of the Devon Building Control Partnership.  He 
remained in the meeting and took part in the debate and vote on the 
item. 

 
 
 
 

Page 33

Agenda Item 12e



*DM&L 45 CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES 
The Minutes of the Development Management and Licensing Committee 
Meeting held on 26 March 2019, and the two Licensing Sub Committees 
held on 12 December 2018 were confirmed and signed by the Chairman 
as a correct record.  

 
 
*DM&L 46 PLANNING, LISTED BUILDING, TREE PRESERVATION ORDER 

AND ENFORCEMENT REPORTS 
 

The Committee proceeded to consider the applications that had been 
prepared by the Development Management Specialists and considered 
also the comments of the Town and Parish Councils together with other 
representations received, which were listed within the presented agenda 
report and summarised below, and RESOLVED that: 

 
(a) Application No:  1794/18/FUL Ward: Hatherleigh 

 
Site Address: Hatherleigh Market, Hatherleigh, Devon 
 
READVERTISEMENT (Revised plans and description) 
Redevelopment of former Hatherleigh Cattle Market comprising 102 
residential units, fur and feathers auction facility/pavilion, A1/A2/A3 
commercial units, market square, associated infrastructure, 
pumping station and car parking 
 
Case Officer Update:  There were six highways conditions that had been 
agreed but not included in the report and these were set out in full for 
Committee members consideration; two late letters of representation had 
been received, one of which raised concerns over access to and from 
the abattoir, which had been discussed with Highways officers who did 
not consider this an issue, and raised concerns over potential future 
conflict in respect of noise and odours arising from the abattoir. The 
second letter of objection stated that there were too many houses being 
proposed according to the Office of National Statistics Data. 
     
Speakers included: Objector – Mr Charles Dumbleton; Town Council 
representative – Cllr Clare Tyson;  Supporter – Ms Andrea Fortune; and 
local Ward Members – Cllr J McInnes (statement read out) and Cllr P 
Kimber 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   Delegate to Head of Practice lead 
Development management, in conjunction with Chairman to 
conditionally grant planning permission, subject to a Section106 legal 
agreement 
 
However, in the event that the Section 106 legal agreement remains 
unsigned six months after this resolution, that the application is reviewed 
by the HoP Lead Development Management, in consultation with the 
Chairman of the Committee, and if no progress is being made delegated 
authority is given to the HoP to refuse the application in the absence of 
an agreed s106 agreement. 

 
COMMITTEE DECISION:   Delegate to Head of Practice lead 
Development management, in conjunction with Chairman to 

Page 34



conditionally grant planning permission, subject to a Section106 legal 
agreement 
 
However, in the event that the Section 106 legal agreement remains 
unsigned six months after this resolution, that the application is reviewed 
by the HoP Lead Development Management, in consultation with the 
Chairman of the Committee, and if no progress is being made delegated 
authority is given to the HoP to refuse the application in the absence of 
an agreed s106 agreement. 

 
  Conditions: 
  1) Standard Time limit for Full planning permission 

2) Adherence to plans  
3) Cycle parking plan 
4) Details of demarcation of market area 
5) Scheme for continued provision of space and parking for operations 

of the market during construction 
6) Landscaping to include details of retaining structures 
7) Boundary treatments and retaining wall details 
8) Vegetative Environmental Buffer details 
9) Render colours as per approved plans unless otherwise agreed in 

writing by the LPA 
10) Material sample condition to include submission of specification for 

exterior paint 
11) Play space delivery and equipment 
12) SWW condition re no run-off to public sewer system 
13) Tree protection (fencing etc) 
14) Tree protection (excavations) 
15) Arboricultural Method statement – general activity 
16) Arboricultural Method statement – no dig requirement 
17) Tree pit/soil information 
18) Full details of construction drainage strategy for surface water 
19) Full details of permanent drainage strategy for surface water 
20) Excedence pathways and overland flow routes 
21) CEMP 
22) Electric Vehicle Charging points 
23) Contaminated land condition 
24) Contaminated land condition 
25) Unexpected contaminated land condition 
26)  Energy/low carbon statement 
27) Mitigation Method statement adherence 
28) LEMP submission 
29) Lighting strategy submission 
30) Ecological Mitigation and Enhancement Strategy submission 
31) High speed broadband ducting to all properties and business units 
32) Use restrictions upon the use of the market building and associated 

square 
33) Use class restrictions upon the A1/A2/A3 units 
34) Noise mitigation scheme to protect proposed residential units 
35) Noise mitigation scheme to protect adjacent residential units from the 

approved market/community use 
36) Detail of external plant to serve any commercial units 
 
Additional conditions relating to Highways matters 

 
Page 35



(b) Application No:  3451/18/FUL  Ward: Buckland Monachorum 
 

Site Address: Challoch Bungalow, The Crescent, Crapstone 
 
READVERTISEMENT (Revised Plans) Development of 3 no 
detached four bedroom dwellings with integral garages, new 
access road and external works (Resubmission of 1697/18/FUL) 
 
 Case Officer Update:     The garages were external not integral, and 
the report should state that Highways comment was ‘standing advice’.  
Natural England had commented they had no objection, subject to 
inclusion of a condition.  Five further letters of representation had been 
received objecting to the scheme.  One objection stated lack of sufficient 
information on landscaping.  Members had received a copy of the recent 
appeal decision whereby a proposal for four dwellings on this site had 
been dismissed.  In response to questions raised on site, the ground 
level would not be much different to the existing ground level of the 
bunglow as the ‘plinth’ was not to be removed. 
 
Speakers included: Objector – Mr Andrew Price; Supporter – Mr Ed 
Persse and local Ward Members – Cllr R Cheadle and Cllr P R Sanders 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   Conditional Approval 

 
During discussion, a number of Members raised concerns over the 
density of the proposal, and it being out of keeping with the character of 
‘The Crescent’.  Members made particular reference to the site being the 
entrance to ‘The Crescent’ and immediately adjacent to open moorland. 
The parish council reiterated that they were not against a replacement 
dwelling on the site, but that three dwellings was too many and the 
village already had plenty of four bedroomed houses.  

 
COMMITTEE DECISION:   Refusal 

 
  Reasons: 

The proposed scheme by reason of its design, density and layout will 
have a significant detrimental impact upon this section of "The Crescent" 
and the adjacent moorland. As such it fails to reinforce local 
distinctiveness or add to the overall visual quality of the area. The 
development is therefore considered contrary to the advice provided 
within the National Planning Policy Framework notably, but not limited to 
paragraphs 124, 127, 128 and 130 and policies SPT1, SPT2, DEV20, 
DEV23 and DEV25 of the Plymouth and South West Devon Joint Local 
Plan. 

 
 
 

(c) Application No:  2542/18/FUL Ward: Drewsteignton 
 

Site Address: Begbeer Farm, Spreyton 
 
Erection of temporary agricultural workers dwelling and ancillary 
access 

 
 

Page 36



 Case Officer Update: None       
 
Speakers included: Supporter – Mr Pat Tomlinson 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   Refusal 

 
COMMITTEE DECISION:   Refusal 

 
 

[NB:  This application was refused in line with the officer 
recommendation by Chairman’s casting vote] 

 
 

(d) Application No:  2646/18/ARM Ward: Okehampton 
 

Site Address: Land North of Crediton Road, Crediton Road, 
Okehampton 

 
READVERTISEMENT (Revised Plans and Description) Reserved 
Matters application seeking approval of appearance, landscaping, 
scale and layout for 111 dwellings (pursuant to outline permission 
4059/16/VAR) 
 
 Case Officer Update:   Biodiversity information had been supplied in 
the CEMP and LEMP and the relevant officer had confirmed it was 
satisfactory subject to the inclusion of two conditions in place of the last 
condition on the committee report list, the conditions were shown to 
Members in full on a slide.     
 
Speakers included: Okehampton Hamlets Parish Council – Cllr Brian 
Wood (statement read); Okehampton Town Council  - Cllr Tony Leech 
(statement read) 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   Conditional Approval 

 
COMMITTEE DECISION:   Conditional Approval 

 
 
  Conditions: 

1. Standard reserved matters conditions 
2. Adherence to plans 
3. Electric vehicle charging points 
4. Tree protection/AMS/construction methodology 
5. Retail use/limitations 
6. Retail restriction – no deliveries between 23:00hrs and 07:00hrs 
7. Details of shop plant  
8. Rear garden gate design and security 
9. Rear access path gate design, security and any associated lighting 
10. Adherence to biodiversity mitigation 

 
 

 (e) Application No:  2647/18/ARM Ward: Okehampton 
 

Site Address: Land North of Crediton Road, Crediton Road, 
Okehampton 

Page 37



 
READVERTISEMENT (Revised Plans and Description) Reserved 
Matters application seeking approval of appearance, landscaping, 
scale and layout for 17 dwellings (pursuant to outline permission 
4059/16/VAR) 
 
 Case Officer Update:   Biodiversity information had been supplied in 
the CEMP and LEMP and the relevant officer had confirmed it was 
satisfactory subject to the inclusion of two conditions in place of the last 
condition on the committee report list, the conditions were shown to 
Members in full on a slide.           
 
Speakers included: Okehampton Hamlets Parish Council – Cllr Brian 
Wood (statement read); Okehampton Town Council  - Cllr Tony Leech 
(statement read) 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   Conditional Approval 

 
COMMITTEE DECISION:   Conditional Approval 
 
Conditions: 
1. Standard reserved matters conditions 
2. Adherence to plans 
3. Electric vehicle charging points 
4. Tree protection/AMS/construction methodology 
5. Rear garden gate design and security 
6. Rear access path gate design, security and any associated lighting 
7. Adherence to biodiversity mitigation 
 
 
 
 
(f) Application No:  2648/18/ARM Ward: Okehampton 

 
Site Address: Land North of Crediton Road, Crediton Road, 
Okehampton 

 
READVERTISEMENT (Revised Plans and Description) Reserved 
Matters application seeking approval of appearance, landscaping, 
scale and layout for 6 dwellings (pursuant to outline permission 
4059/16/VAR) 

 
 Case Officer Update:   Biodiversity information had been supplied in 
the CEMP and LEMP and the relevant officer had confirmed it was 
satisfactory subject to the inclusion of two conditions in place of the last 
condition on the committee report list, the conditions were shown to 
Members in full on a slide.           
 
Speakers included: Okehampton Hamlets Parish Council – Cllr Brian 
Wood (statement read); Okehampton Town Council  - Cllr Tony Leech 
(statement read) 

 
RECOMMENDATION:   Conditional Approval 

 
COMMITTEE DECISION:   Conditional Approval 

Page 38



 
  Conditions: 
 

1. Standard reserved matters conditions 
2. Adherence to plans 
3. Electric vehicle charging points 
4. Tree protection/AMS/construction methodology 
5. Rear garden gate design and security 
6. Rear access path gate design, security and any associated lighting 
7. Adherence to biodiversity mitigation 

 
 
*DM&L 47 PLANNING APPEALS UPDATE 

The Committee received and noted the updated list of Planning Appeals, 
including Enforcement Appeals. 

 
 

(The Meeting terminated at 15.05 pm) 
 
 
 
 
 

______________________ 
Chairman 

Page 39



This page is intentionally left blank



 
Members of the Bodies of the Council for 2019/20 

 
A. Audit Committee E. Overview and Scrutiny Committee  

         
Cllr A Bridgewater Cllr K Ball 
Cllr P Crozier Cllr T Bolton 
Cllr M Davies Cllr A Coulson  
Cllr S Hipsey Cllr L Daniel 
Cllr M Renders Cllr M Ewings 
Cllr P Vachon Cllr N Heyworth 
Cllr J Yelland Cllr K Kemp 
 Cllr P Kimber 
 Cllr D E Moyse 
 Cllr C R Musgrave 
 Cllr B Ratcliffe 
 Cllr P J Ridgers 
 Cllr T Southcott 
 Cllr J Spettigue 
 Cllr L Wood 
  

B.  Dartmoor National Park F. DM and Licensing Committee 
    

Cllr D E Moyse Cllr R Cheadle 
Cllr M Renders Cllr S Hipsey 
 Cllr C Mott 
 Cllr D E Moyse 
 Cllr T G Pearce 

  Cllr B Ratcliffe 
C. Hub Committee (+ portfolio area) Cllr M Renders 

 Cllr P Crozier 
Cllr N Jory (Leader) Cllr P Vachon 
Cllr L Samuel (Deputy Leader) Cllr J Yelland 
Cllr R Cheadle (Enterprise) 
Cllr C Edmonds (Resources and Performance) 
Cllr A F Leech (Health and Wellbeing) Substitutes: 
Cllr J B Moody (Customer First) 
Cllr C Mott (Environment) Cllr T Bolton 
Cllr T G Pearce (Communities) Cllr A Bridgewater 
Cllr D K A Sellis (Homes) Cllr M Ewings 
 Cllr N Heyworth 
 Cllr C Kemp 

D. ** Invest to Earn Committee **  Cllr P Kimber 
 Cllr R Musgrave 
Cllr R Cheadle Cllr D Sellis 
Cllr C Edmonds Cllr T Southcott 
Cllr L Samuel   
  
 G. Standards Committee 
       
 Cllr T Bolton 
 Cllr M Davies 
 Cllr A F Leech 
 Cllr C R Musgrave   
 Cllr J Yelland  

Page 41

Agenda Item 17



This page is intentionally left blank



   

Nominations for Chairman and Vice Chairman of  
Council Bodies for 2019/2020 

 
 

A Audit Committee  

 

 Cllr M Davies – Chairman 

 Cllr P Vachon – Vice Chairman 

 

 

 

  

 

 

B Development Management and Licensing Committee 

 

 Cllr J Yelland – Chairman 

 Cllr T G Pearce – Vice-Chairman 

 

C Hub Committee 

 

 Cllr N Jory – Chairman 

 Cllr L Samuel – Vice-Chairman 

 

D Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

  

 Cllr M Ewings – Chairman 

 Cllr P Kimber – Vice-Chairman 

 

 

E *** Invest to Earn Committee **** 

 

 Cllr C Edmonds – Chairman 

 

F Standards Committee 

 

 Cllr A F Leech – Chairman 

 Cllr M Davies – Vice-Chairman 

 

  

 

Page 43

Agenda Item 18



This page is intentionally left blank



REPRESENTATIVES ON OUTSIDE BODIES 2019/20 

 
1. Cornwall and West Devon Mining Landscape World Heritage Site 

Partnership 

 Cllr C Mott  

 
2. Crowndale Recreational Association 
  
3. Dartmoor National Park – Joint Advisory Committee on Housing                    
        Cllrs D E Moyse and D K A Sellis 
 
4. Devon Authorities Strategic Waste Committee 
 Cllr S Hipsey OR C Mott (ONE VACANCY) 
 
5. Devon County Locality Committee 
 Cllrs N Heyworth and L Wood 
 
6. Devon Districts Forum 
 Leader of Council 
 
7. District Councils’ Network 
 Leader of Council 
 
8. Heart of the South West Devolution - Joint Committee 
 Leader of Council (Substitute Member: Deputy Leader of Council) 
 
9. Highways and Traffic Orders Committee 
 Cllrs A F Leech and T Southcott 
 
10. iESE Transformation Limited 
 Deputy Leader of Council 
 
11. Local Action for Greater Dartmoor (LEAF) 
 Cllr T G Pearce 
 
12. Local Government Association 

(i)     District Council Network – Leader of Council 
(ii) General Assembly – Leader of Council 
(ii)    South West Branch – Leader of Council 

 
13. Okehampton Rail Forum 
 Cllr J Yelland 
 
14. PATROL Adjudication Joint Committee 
 Cllr C R Musgrave 
 
15. Police and Crime Commissioners Scrutiny Panel 
 Deputy Leader of Council 
 
16. South Devon and Dartmoor Community Safety Partnership 
 Cllr C R Musgrave 
 
17. South West Councils 
 Leader of Council 
 
18. SPARSE Rural 

Page 45

Agenda Item 19



 Chairman of Hub Committee (and Vice-Chairman as Substitute) 
 
19. Tamar Estuary Consultative Forum 
 Cllr S Hipsey 
 
20. Tamar Valley AONB Partnership 
 Cllr A Coulson and P Crozier 
 
21. Tavistock Business Improvement District (BID) 
 Cllr R Cheadle 
 
22. Tavistock College Endowment Fund Trustees 
  
 
23. Tavistock Heritage Initiative Grants Panel 
  
 
24. Tavistock Townscape Heritage Partnership 
  
 
25. Torridge, North, Mid and West Devon Citizens Advice Bureau 
  
 

Page 46



Appointment of Other Groups 2019/2020 
 

(a) Accommodation Strategy Working Group 
Leaders and Deputy Leaders from both Groups 
 
(b) Rural Broadband Working Group 
Cllr K Ball 
Cllr T Bolton 
Cllr R Cheadle 
Cllr P Kimber 
Cllr L Wood 
 
(c) Car Parking Strategy Group 
Cllr K Ball 
Cllr P Kimber 
Cllr A F Leech 
Cllr J B Moody 
Cllr D K A Sellis 
Cllr J Spettigue 
 
(d) Council Tax Setting Panel 
Leader of Council 
Deputy Leader of Council 
Mayor of Council 
Leader of the Opposition Group 
 
(e) Devon Building Control Partnership 
Cllr P Kimber 
Cllr T G Pearce 
 
(f) Discretionary Business Rates and Rate Relief Panel 
Leader of Council 
Chairman of Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
Mayor of Council 
Lead Hub Committee Member for Enterprise 
 
(g)  Economy Working Group 
Cllr R Cheadle 
Cllr A Coulson 
Cllr P Crozier 
Cllr P Kimber 
Cllr T G Pearce 
Cllr T Southcott 
 
(h) Financial Stability Review Group 
Cllr T Bolton 
Cllr R Cheadle 
Cllr P Crozier 
Cllr M Davies 
Cllr C Edmonds 
Cllr M Ewings 
Cllr N Jory 
 
(i) Front Line Services (Waste Procurement) Project Board 
Cllr C Kemp Page 47

Agenda Item 20



Cllr J B Moody 
Cllr C Mott 
 
(j) Joint WD/SH/Plymouth Local Plan Steering Group 
Cllr C Mott 
Cllr T G Pearce 
 
(k) Joint WD/SH Steering Group 
Leaders and Deputy Leaders from both Groups 
 
(l) Member Development Steering Group 
Cllr K Ball 
Cllr S Hipsey 
Cllr C Kemp 
Cllr B Ratcliffe 
Cllr P Vachon 
Cllr L Wood 
 
(m) Political Structures Working Group 
Cllr K Ball 
Cllr M Davies 
Cllr C R Musgrave 
Cllr L Samuel 
Cllr J Spettigue 
Cllr L Wood 
 
(n) Waste Working Group 
Cllr L Daniel 
Cllr N Heyworth 
Cllr S Hipsey 
Cllr C Kemp 
Cllr J B Moody 
Cllr C Mott 
Cllr R Musgrave 
Cllr B Ratcliffe 
 

Page 48



Report to: Annual Council 

Date: 21 May 2019 

Title: Annual Report 

Portfolio Area: Leader of the Council  

Wards Affected: All 

Urgent Decision:    N Approval and 
clearance obtained: 

Y  

Date next steps can be taken: Immediately 
following this 

meeting 

  

Author: Nadine Trout Role: Commissioning Manager 

Contact: Nadine.Trout@swdevon.gov.uk or 01822 813624 

 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS:   

1. That the progress and achievements made by the Council be 
 noted; and 

2. That the West Devon Annual Report (as presented at
 Appendix A) be adopted and published for the financial year 
 2018/19. 

 

1.  Executive summary  
1.1 This report reviews the Council’s progress over the last financial 

year.  The Annual Report is presented at Appendix A. 
 

1.2 It is good practice to review the Council’s progress across a range 

of internal and external activities as well as providing a public 
record.  

 
1.3 Finally the report sets the scene for the year ahead.    

 

 
2.  Background  

2.1 The last financial year has been one of significant change for this 
Council.  It is appropriate to take stock of the key issues, successes 
and challenges met by the Council and how they have been 

addressed.   
 

2.2 It is also important to look at the impact on residents, communities 
and our organisation. 

Page 49

Agenda Item 21



 
2.3 It is usual to provide an annual report as an externally facing 

document, which along with its Annual Governance Statement 
should help reassure the public that the Council is undertaking its 

statutory functions, delivering its services and meeting its financial 
responsibilities in an open and transparent way.  

 

2.4 This is a public report and is in line with our requirements to be 
open and accountable. 

 
2.5 The Annual Report aims to help Members, the public and our staff 

to better understand the Council’s activities and approach to 

delivering services to our community. 
 

3.  Outcomes/outputs  
3.1  This report shows significant progress made throughout 18/19 and 
 also acknowledges the challenges that have been faced over the 

 past months.   
 

3.2 Financial targets are on track, savings have been realised and the 
 Council’s internal controls are fit for purpose.  

 
 
4.  Options available and consideration of risk  

4.1 Constitutionally, the Leader of Council is required to provide an 
annual report and it is good practice to do so.    

 
4.2 An alternative to the report could be a verbal report from the 

Leader at Council but it is considered better to have a formal 

document accessible to the public and published online. 
 

5.   Proposed Way Forward  

5.1 It is proposed that the contents of the report are agreed. 

 
5.2 Members’ views on the content of the Annual Report would be 

helpful to inform the Annual Report before final publication. 
 

 
6. Implications  

Implications 
 

Relevant  
to  
proposals  

Y/N  

Details and proposed measures to address  

Legal/Governance 

 

Y There are no legal implications as a result of this 

report, however it is considered good practise to 
produce an Annual Report so as to highlight to 

Members and the public how the Council conducts 
its business and what the key issues are facing it. 
 

Financial 
implications to 

Y The 2018/19 net budget for West Devon Borough 
Council was £7.31million, but the actual spend for 

Page 50



include reference 

to value for 
money 
 

the year is forecast to be slightly below this figure 

at 0.9% providing a saving of £65,000 which will 
go into the Council’s Unearmarked Reserves which 
will stand at £1.26 million. 

The Council deployed resources in 2018/19 to 
achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for 

taxpayers and local people. It also approved a net 
budget for 2019/20 which includes proposals for 
savings and additional income of £690,000, 

including significant annual savings from April 2019 
from the procurement of the Council’s waste 

collection, recycling and cleansing services. As part 
of the budget setting process for 2019/20, the 
Council has agreed to reduce funding or seek 

efficiencies to ensure statutory delivery outcomes 
are prioritised. 

  

Risk Y A failure to review and publish Council 

achievements and future actions could lead to:  
Lack of coherent policy and delivery 
Reputational harm 

Ineffective use of resources 
Poor quality service 

These risks are mitigated by:  
Review of this Annual Report. 
 

Supporting 
Corporate 

Strategy  

Y All Corporate Strategy themes are covered by the 
Annual Report which lists achievements for each 

strategic theme for 2018/19. 
 

Comprehensive Impact Assessment Implications 

Equality and 

Diversity 
 

 None – no policy or service change is proposed in 

this report. 

Safeguarding 
 

 None – no policy or service change is proposed in 
this report. 

 

Community 

Safety, Crime 
and Disorder 

 None – no policy or service change is proposed in 

this report. 
 
 

Health, Safety 
and Wellbeing 

 None – no policy or service change is proposed in 
this report. 

Other 
implications 

 However, the publication of the Annual Report may 
help understanding of the Council’s position and 

the way it operates amongst partners and the 
public. 

 
Supporting Information 

Appendices: 
A: The Annual Report 

Page 51



This page is intentionally left blank



 2018 - 2019

West Devon
Annual Report

www.westdevon.gov.uk

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

Appendix A 
Published April 2019

Page 53



2

West Devon Borough Council - Annual Report 2018-2019

Introduction
The fi nancial year 2018/19 has been the year the 
Government reduced our core funding to zero. This 
has provided a signifi cant challenge for the Council 
to continue to deliver our full range of services and 
meet the needs of our communities, reliant only on 
any income we can generate and a small percentage 
of Council tax  (12%) and  14% of Business rates raised 
in the area.  We have continued our relentless pursuit 
of trying to fi nd more effi  cient ways of providing 
services whilst, at the same time, making it easier for 
people to do business with us.

We continue to work closely with South Hams 
District Council and share a single workforce. This 
arrangement generates an ongoing annual saving 
of £2.2m for West Devon.

As the Local Planning Authority we have a key 
role to play in setting the local strategy for 
development in our area. A major success for us this 
year has been the adoption of the Joint Local Plan 
which sets out a comprehensive 20 year plan for 
West Devon, the South Hams and Plymouth. 

A key project this year has been the successful 
renewal of our multi million pound contract for 
recycling, waste collection and street cleansing 
services. Our partnership with FCC continues with a 
new contract from April 2019 and will save us around 
£2 million during the lifetime of the contract. 

In November 2018 the Local Government 
Association led a Peer Review of the Council and 
our joint arrangements with South Hams District 
Council. The team comprising of Councillors and 
senior offi  cers from other Councils reviewed 
our fi nancial plans, governance, leadership and 
capacity to deliver services. Their report was very 
positive about our plans and progress to date and 
provided a number of recommendations for the 
Council to implement. 

The Council has been 
actively pursuing our 
commercial strategy 
to develop our assets or 
acquire new assets with the 
dual aims of providing economic 
benefi t as well as a revenue return to the Council. 
Our acquisitions over the past year are now 
generating a new income stream for the Council of 
over £275 ,000 every year.

We continue to play a signifi cant role in our region, 
working with other local authorities and partners 
through the Heart of the South West Joint Committee, 
with the Local Enterprise Partnership and agencies 
such as Homes England to improve infrastructure, 
facilitate economic growth and support the 
building of aff ordable housing in our area.

Sophie Hosking
 Chief Executive

Cllr Philip Sanders
Leader of the Council

£2m
saved on waste 

contract

£2.2m
annual workforce 

saving

20 year 
Joint Local Plan 

adopted

Page 54



3

West Devon Borough Council - Annual Report 2018-2019

Finance
The Council  has  set a balanced net 
budget of £7. 1 million  for 201 9/ 20. 
 This is the second year running 
that the Council has received no 
Government Grant funding (Revenue 
Support Grant) and the Council 
will need to be self-fi nancing. The 
Council has progressed options of 
how it can generate its own income 
through Invest to Earn initiatives.

West Devon Borough Council plans to spend 
£20.5 million (gross) on providing services for 
2019/20. A total of £15.8 million of this amount 
comes from the income we receive from grants, 
fees and charges. Therefore the amount of council 
tax we need to collect is £4.7 million.

To secure the future of Council services to the 
public, the Council has increased council tax by 
£6.72 from £224.91 in 2018/19. This means that the 
cost of West Devon Borough Council’s services for 
an average band D property will be £231.63 for 
2019/20. The Council has committed to protecting 
front line services where possible.

How your Council Tax is spent

1 Includes Recycling and Waste Resource, Public Conveniences, Car Parks and Transport
2 Includes Housing, Planning, Environmental Health, Leisure Centres and the 

administration of Council Tax, Business Rates and Benefi ts

The Council’s 
spending plans 
for 2018/19 
and 2019/20

(compared to  last year)
All fi gures are gross (£000), 
the total amount we spend

Financial performance for the year 
to 31st March 2019

 The 2018/19 net budget for West Devon was £7.31 
million, but the actual spend for the year is forecast 
to be 0.9% lower, providing a saving of £65,000 
which will go into the Council’s Unearmarked 
Reserves which will stand at £1.26 million. The 
Council’s fi nancial strategy recognises the need to 
maintain these reserves to provide stability for both 
medium and longer term fi nancial planning and to 
provide a contingency against unforeseen events. 
Maintaining a level of reserves also protects against 
the volatility of some income and expenditure 
budgets which can be dependent on economic 
conditions, the weather and tourism.

 The Council continues to share staff  with South 
Hams District Council. West Devon Borough Council 
is generating ongoing annual savings of £2.2 
million from a joint Transformation Programme 
(T18) and sharing services with South Hams District 
Council. The Councils’ shared workforce has been 
reduced by 30% through the T18 Programme 
and processes have been redesigned around the 
customer. The radical programme has changed 
how the Councils’ work, to deliver more effi  ciencies 
and to retain the Councils’ frontline services.

2019/20
£20.5m

Total gross
budget

2018/19
£24.3m

Total gross
budget

65% Devon 

County Council
for: education, roads, 
care for the elderly 
and disabled, child 
protection, public 
health, libraries, 
recycling centres and 
waste disposal

precept to fund adult social care5% Devon County Council - additional 

3% Town and 

Parish Councils
for: local amenities

for: fire prevention, 
fire and rescue

4% Devon and Somerset 
Fire and Rescue Authority

11% Police and Crime

for: law and order and 
crime reduction

Commissioner for
Devon and Cornwall

12% West Devon Borough Council
for: refuse collection and kerbside 
recycling, housing, planning, 
street cleaning, leisure

Commercial
1

Services 
Customer

2
First 

Strategy and
Commissioning

Support
Services

3,
68

1

4,
23

2

16
,5

50

12
,0

65

2,
59

5

3,
79

6

97
2

1,
00

2

Page 55



4

West Devon Borough Council - Annual Report 2018-2019

What your Council Tax 
money goes towards 
and who is responsible

West Devon Borough  Council

Devon County Council (DCC)

Town and Parish Council

Police and Crime Commissioner

West Devon Borough Council
Below is a street scene showing the key services 

provided by West Devon Borough Council. 

www.westdevon.gov.uk

Devon County Council
Here are some of the Devon County Council services 
which are often mistaken with the services provided 

by West Devon. 
www.devon.gov.uk

Town and Parish Council
To find out services from your Town and Parish Council,

contact your local clerk ...

www.westdevon.gov.uk/contactyourparishcouncil

Devon and Somerset 
Fire and Rescue

Services provided by DSFR can be found at...

www.dsfr.gov.uk

Police and Crime Commissioner
For services provided by the Police use the 

Ask Ned function...

www.devon-cornwall.police.uk/askned

NO ENTRY!!
FOR SALE

Planning Permission
Enforcement, Advice 

and Planning for 
the Future

Building Maintenance Service

Local Land 
Charge Services

CCTV Roads 
and TransportTrip Hazards

Disabled Facilities
Grants

Council Owned
Land and Property

Blocked Drains 

Planning
Application

Initial assessment by
DCC Care Direct 

For overflowing drains
contact South West Water

Cleaning leaves and
 odour - contact DCC 

Looking After Council Owned 
Parks and Open Spaces  

Litter

Community Safety

Potholes Bollards

Air Quality Monitoring
and Reporting

The main cemeteries are dealt 
with by Town and Parish Councils  

PARTY

Events Licensing

Homelessness, 
Housing Advice and 

the Housing Register

Some may be owned by 
Town or Parish Councils

Dog Fouling
and Dog Bins

Roads and TransportPlay Parks on 
Council Land

Flood Protection

PUB

Food

Food
Inspector

Food Hygiene 
Inspections

and ComplaintsBusiness Rates

New bin requests
should be reported

to your  Town or
Parish Council

Street Traders 
(Pedlars Licence) - 

Police

Garden waste is a 
subscribed service

30

Litter

STOP

Street Lamps

Street Litter
Bins

Fly Tipping, 
Enforcement 

and Clearance on 
Council Land

Stray Dogs

Traffic Signs

Licensing Authority
for Businesses such

as Pubs, Restaurants 
and Zoos

Recycling and
Refuse Collections

Council Tax

We Own and Rent 
Out Commercial 

Property

West Devon Street 69

Street Name
& Numbering Business Support

In the case of 
lost cats and 
aggressive dogs 
contact      
Police 101

Some may
be owned 

by Town or
Parish Councils Pedlars Licence - PoliceWe can also collect

your Health Care Waste
such as used needles

Street Traders
(Pedlars Licence) -

Police

Garden waste is a 
subscribed service

West Devon
Borough
Council

New bin requests
should be reported

to your  Town or
Parish Council

Some may
be owned

by Town or
Parish Councils

Pest Control

Pests: Wasps/Hornet 
nests in schools - 

contact DCC 

BOTTLE

On Street Parking 

J96K

FINE

WEST DEVON SCHOOLLitter

Traffic Lights

Council Owned
Car Parks

Public ToiletsElections 

Tree Preservation

(Litter)
Street Cleaning

Abandoned Vehicles
on Public Roads and
Council Owned Land

School Services

Heritage Preservation

Taxi

Taxi Licensing

Underground Heritage 
Preservation

If you have 
any issues go
direct to the 

relevant Leisure
Centre.

For Litter and Spillages on
Major Roads contact DCC 

A number are opened by
Town/Parish Councils

Road Sweepers
(Leaves and Debris)

Bottle Banks
Grass Verges 

and Weeds

Leisure Centres

30

West Devon
Borough
Council

Some may be 
owned by Town or 

Parish Councils

Housing
Benefits

Affordable
Housing

Page 56



5

West Devon Borough Council - Annual Report 2018-2019

What your Council Tax 
money goes towards 
and who is responsible

West Devon Borough  Council

Devon County Council (DCC)

Town and Parish Council

Police and Crime Commissioner

West Devon Borough Council
Below is a street scene showing the key services 

provided by West Devon Borough Council. 

www.westdevon.gov.uk

Devon County Council
Here are some of the Devon County Council services 
which are often mistaken with the services provided 

by West Devon. 
www.devon.gov.uk

Town and Parish Council
To find out services from your Town and Parish Council,

contact your local clerk ...

www.westdevon.gov.uk/contactyourparishcouncil

Devon and Somerset 
Fire and Rescue

Services provided by DSFR can be found at...

www.dsfr.gov.uk

Police and Crime Commissioner
For services provided by the Police use the 

Ask Ned function...

www.devon-cornwall.police.uk/askned

NO ENTRY!!
FOR SALE

Planning Permission
Enforcement, Advice 

and Planning for 
the Future

Building Maintenance Service

Local Land 
Charge Services

CCTV Roads 
and TransportTrip Hazards

Disabled Facilities
Grants

Council Owned
Land and Property

Blocked Drains 

Planning
Application

Initial assessment by
DCC Care Direct 

For overflowing drains
contact South West Water

Cleaning leaves and
 odour - contact DCC 

Looking After Council Owned 
Parks and Open Spaces  

Litter

Community Safety

Potholes Bollards

Air Quality Monitoring
and Reporting

The main cemeteries are dealt 
with by Town and Parish Councils  

PARTY

Events Licensing

Homelessness, 
Housing Advice and 

the Housing Register

Some may be owned by 
Town or Parish Councils

Dog Fouling
and Dog Bins

Roads and TransportPlay Parks on 
Council Land

Flood Protection

PUB

Food

Food
Inspector

Food Hygiene 
Inspections

and ComplaintsBusiness Rates

New bin requests
should be reported

to your  Town or
Parish Council

Street Traders 
(Pedlars Licence) - 

Police

Garden waste is a 
subscribed service

30

Litter

STOP

Street Lamps

Street Litter
Bins

Fly Tipping, 
Enforcement 

and Clearance on 
Council Land

Stray Dogs

Traffic Signs

Licensing Authority
for Businesses such

as Pubs, Restaurants 
and Zoos

Recycling and
Refuse Collections

Council Tax

We Own and Rent 
Out Commercial 

Property

West Devon Street 69

Street Name
& Numbering Business Support

In the case of 
lost cats and 
aggressive dogs 
contact      
Police 101

Some may
be owned 

by Town or
Parish Councils Pedlars Licence - PoliceWe can also collect

your Health Care Waste
such as used needles

Street Traders
(Pedlars Licence) -

Police

Garden waste is a 
subscribed service

West Devon
Borough
Council

New bin requests
should be reported

to your  Town or
Parish Council

Some may
be owned

by Town or
Parish Councils

Pest Control

Pests: Wasps/Hornet 
nests in schools - 

contact DCC 

BOTTLE

On Street Parking 

J96K

FINE

WEST DEVON SCHOOLLitter

Traffic Lights

Council Owned
Car Parks

Public ToiletsElections 

Tree Preservation

(Litter)
Street Cleaning

Abandoned Vehicles
on Public Roads and
Council Owned Land

School Services

Heritage Preservation

Taxi

Taxi Licensing

Underground Heritage 
Preservation

If you have 
any issues go
direct to the 

relevant Leisure
Centre.

For Litter and Spillages on
Major Roads contact DCC 

A number are opened by
Town/Parish Councils

Road Sweepers
(Leaves and Debris)

Bottle Banks
Grass Verges 

and Weeds

Leisure Centres

30

West Devon
Borough
Council

Some may be 
owned by Town or 

Parish Councils

Housing
Benefits

Affordable
Housing

Page 57



6

West Devon Borough Council - Annual Report 2018-2019

Organisational Effectiveness
In addition to the Local Government Association 
Peer Review, this year saw the Council commission 
the Institute of Customer Service to undertake a 
customer satisfaction survey. The results compared 
us against public and private sector organisations 
giving valuable information about what our 
customer think about how we deliver our services 
and more importantly, how we can improve them. 
All staff attended a workshop looking at how 
everyone can make ‘a positive impact’ in delivering 
our services to the communities we serve. The 
use of social media is becoming an increasingly 
important method of informing customers of 
service changes, which, along with continued 
investment in simple to use IT systems, has enabled 
us to continue to reduce timescales for the delivery 
of almost all our services. As we deliver more 
services to our customers’ expectations, we have 
continued to see a significant reduction in call 
volumes, since the end of March 2017.

Our Workforce

West Devon Borough Council and South Hams District 
Council directly employ 444 full time equivalent staff 
to deliver shared services. The current workforce 
will significantly reduce following the TUPE transfer 
of employees on 1 April 2019 as a consequence of 
awarding the new Waste contract.  Staff throughout 
the Councils continue to perform well with sickness 
levels below the national average. HR policies 
allow a fair relationship between employer and 
employee and regular staff briefings and an online 
staff appraisal system ensures staff are up to speed 
with Council priorities; and able to evidence their 
achievements and identify any training needs. Both 
Councils are committed to providing opportunities 
to young people and currently have 5 apprentices.

Audit Assurance

The Council has a number of measures in place 
to assess its performance. An Audit Committee 
meets five times a year and its role is to provide 
an oversight of the financial reporting and audit 
processes plus the system of internal controls and 
compliance with laws and regulations. The Council 
also has two internal audit staff managed by the 

Devon Audit Partnership who provide an opinion on 
the internal control environment and governance 
processes.

External audit was provided by KPMG who in 2018 
reported that they were satisfied that in all significant 
respects the Council has put in place proper 
arrangements to secure economy, efficiency, and 
effectiveness in its use of resources.

Risk Management

There is a culture of risk ownership and management 
throughout the Council throughout 2018/19 particular 
focus has been given to health and safety and 
information security. Risks are logged centrally and 
are updated regularly. For each risk, the uncertainties 
are identified, along with the consequences, 
likelihood of occurrence and strategic impacts that 
would result. The Council’s Senior Leadership Team 
review the corporate risk log monthly and updates 
are reported to Elected Members via the Audit 
Committee on a biannual basis. Elected Members 
also have the opportunity to raise concerns with the 
mitigating actions being taken by officers and can 
suggest new risks for consideration.

Governance

The Council has a Governance Framework which 
comprises the systems, processes, culture and values 
under which they operate. This is in place to ensure 
transparent decision making and proper use of public 
funds and is reported on annually through the Annual 
Governance Statement. In addition to the controls and 
procedures mentioned above, the Council’s primary 
governance documents are set out in the Constitution 
(for example, Contract Procedure Rules, Financial 
Procedure Rules and Codes of Governance). The 
Constitution is reviewed annually and adopted at the 
Annual Meeting for the forthcoming year. The Council 
has a Report Monitoring process in which all reports are 
checked against the principles of clarity, fairness, legality, 
and financial regularity and soundness. The Statutory 
Officers’ Panel (comprising the Councils’ key governance 
officers) carries out a rolling review of the Council’s 
governance and regulatory frameworks  to ensure 
that they are kept updated, relevant and effective.

Page 58



7

West Devon Borough Council - Annual Report 2018-2019

Performance 2018/19
Housing  
benefit claims 
processing times 
8.5 days faster 
than the national 
target

Online 
transactions 
increased by 
10,000 to 55,000 
transactions

Missed waste 
collections equate 
to 108 in every 
100,000

Non major 
planning 
determinations 
delivered on 
time 83%

Call volume 
decreased by 
over 3,000 calls

215

food inspections

220

planning
enforcement 

investigations

872
planning applications

processed

individual
household

waste
collections
per annum

household
recycling
collected

calls handled
60,043

online
transactions

55,000

£70,000

Community
Grant Funding 

£308,271
Disabled facility grants

16
affordable 

homes
delivered in
partnership68

Listed building 
consents issued

16
fly tips

investigated

69
abandoned vehicles 
investigated

43,260
people

registered
to vote

households 
where 
homelessness 
was prevented

410

620
toilet

inspections

1.7m

9,000
TONNES

For a list of council services visit

www.westdevon.gov.uk
Click on the View all our services link on the home page.

To track the Council’s progress throughout the year visit

www.westdevon.gov.uk
Search for Councillors and Committees, Overview & Scrutiny Panel.

Page 59



West Devon Borough Council - Annual Report 2018-2019

Strategies & Plans
The Council has a number of strategic documents and plans that guide its 
approach to achieving its vision to serve local communities and ensure that it 
remains fi nancially sustainable. 

Corporate Strategy

 The Council’s Corporate Strategy is 
guided by six strategic themes which are 
shown in the image alongside this text. 

Achievements against these themes can 
be found on pages 9-11 of this report.

Joint Local Plan

A key responsibility of the Council is to 
maintain an up to date development plan. 
The Joint Local Plan, prepared in conjunction 
with South Hams and Plymouth Councils sets out 
a strategy and detailed policies that establish a 
framework to steer housing and employment 
development to the most sustainable locations and 
to guide decisions on planning applications.

 On 26 March 2019 the Plymouth and South West 
Devon Joint Local Plan was formally adopted. The Plan 
had been subject to examination by two independent 
Inspectors appointed by the Secretary of State. 
The adopted Plan which sets out a comprehensive 
20 year strategy, meeting needs for homes, jobs, 
shopping and leisure needs in  full.  The Plan also 
guides development to locations in accordance with 
a sustainable development framework , based on a 
sound understanding of the precious natural resources 
of the Thriving Towns and Villages, including a full 
set of site allocation policies and also incorporating 
a full set of development management policies. 

The next stage is to deliver against the plans 
aspirations through the new governance 
framework and associated joint working 
arrangements between the delivery partners. 

Medium Term Financial Strategy

 In September 2018, Council approved the Medium 
Term Financial Strategy which looks at fi nancial 
planning and management over a fi ve year 

strategy. It sets out the strategic intention for all 
of the diff erent strands of funding available to the 
Council. The Council can now rely on this to inform 
future decisions. This also helps us to develop a 
sustainable budget over the medium term and will 
be reviewed annually. It incorporates key factors such 
as changes in Government funding, our spending 
plans, and the levels of savings we need to make to 
achieve a balanced budget.

The Asset Management Plan

Sets out the strategic direction for the Council 
both as a land owner and with respect to its asset 
portfolio. It is essential to have a long term plan, to 
facilitate day to day operational decisions. The key 
points of the plan are to: 

 commence a limited programme of residential 
development

 grow the existing commercial portfolio of small 
starter units

 facilitate community use of assets if appropriate

 dispose of underperforming and nonstrategic 
assets for re-investment

The Joint Local Plan, prepared in conjunction 
with South Hams and Plymouth Councils sets out 
a strategy and detailed policies that establish a 
framework to steer housing and employment 

ENVIRONMENT
Protecting, conserving

and enhancing our
built and natural

environment

COUNCIL

Delivering
efficient and 
effective services

ENTERPRISE

Creating places for
enterprise to thrive
and business to grow

Council and residents
working together to

create strong and
empowered communities

COMMUNITIES

Supporting positive,
safe and healthy

lifestyles and helping
those most in need

WELLBEING

HOMES

Enabling homes
that meet the
needs of all

8

Council’s Corporate 
Strategy Themes

Page 60



West Devon Borough Council - Annual Report 2018-2019

Achievements  2018/19
COUNCIL        Delivering effi  cient and eff ective services

Action  18/19 Progress

Customer 
Service

 Joined the renowned Institute of Customer Service to benchmark Council service against 
market leaders.  Stopped accepting cash and cheque payments, enabling more staff  to 
be deployed on phone answering, which in turn has helped signifi cantly reduce call-
waiting times for customers. We have continued to focus on ‘getting it right fi rst time’ 
and proactively keeping customers informed, both of which have helped to reduce call 
volumes. We have piloted web chat and will be looking at how we can expand this in 
2019/20.

Value for 
Money

 Deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and 
local people.  Approved a net budget for 2019/20 which includes proposals for savings 
and additional income of £690,000, including signifi cant annual savings from April 2019 
from the procurement of the Council’s waste collection, recycling and cleansing services.  
As part of the budget setting process for 2019/20, the Council has agreed to reduce 
funding or seek effi  ciencies to ensure statutory delivery outcomes are prioritised.

Lobbying  Participated in a number of consultations during the year, including business rate retention 
reform, the Fair Funding Review, the 2019/20 Local Government Finance Settlement and 
the Local Authority Financial Resilience Index. The Council was accepted as one of only 
10 new business rate retention pilots in England for 2018/19. The Council has also been 
working with Rural Services Network to lobby central government on the higher cost of 
delivering rural services and has formally signed up to the RSN Rural Strategy which is 
gaining support in central Government. 

Investment  The Council has taken a commercial approach and has been pro-active in addressing 
economic regeneration in times of fi nancial austerity. A commercial property acquisition 
strategy has been approved by the Council, which blends in-area development and 
investment, with those outside of the area, all capped within the Council’s borrowing 
limit of £50 million.  

9

60,043
calls handled

online
transactions

55,000

43,260
people 

registered
to vote

annual saving by
working with
South Hams 

District Council

£2.9
million

annual saving by
working with
South Hams 

District Council

£2.2
million

Page 61



West Devon Borough Council - Annual Report 2018-2019

10

COMMUNITIES Council and residents working together 
 to create strong empowered communities

Action  18/19 Progress

Community Project 
Grants

£ 16,868  allocated to  4 projects ranging from renovations to a village hall, replacing 
play equipment, an arts project and wildlife equipment.

 Communities 
Together Funding

£ 28,100 awarded to  7 community projects including  play equipment, bus shelter, 
defi brillator, memory cafe and village hall improvements.

Seamoor 
Community Lotto

Agreement secured to proceed with a Council led lottery in partnership with South 
Hams District Council and Gatherwell Ltd.   Over 90 local, good causes signed up to 
receive funds.

Community 
Support

Provided core funding support to a range of local organisation providing services to local 
communities including the Citizens Advice, CVS (Community Volunteer Service), Ring 
and Rides, Okehampton Community and Recreation Association and Young Devon. 

Community Asset 
Transfers

A number of transfers have completed this year, with two areas of open space and 
one public toilet transferring to Okehampton Town Council.  Other public toilet 
transfers include Chagford and Lydford, with more planned for 2019.

Neighbourhood 
Plans

Launched a dedicated website www.neighbourhoodplanning.swdevon.gov.uk
providing detailed information on plans that are already in progress and guidance 
for community groups thinking of starting a plan.  1 plan made in 2018/19.

HOMES Enabling homes that meet 
 the needs of all

Action  18/19 Progress

Aff ordable housing  16 homes completed in Horrabridge and South Tawton.  Construction is also 
underway to provide 28 aff ordable homes within Chagford, the fi rst units will 
be completed and ready for occupation in July 2019 in partnership with the 
Community Land Trust and Aster Housing Association.  Work has commenced 
on three sites in Tavistock including Butcher Park which is set to provide 38 
aff ordable homes, Callington Road providing 41 homes and new Launceston 
Road 37 homes.  In Okehampton permission has been granted for 12 homes 
and two other applications, outside of the main towns will provide a further 34 
dwellings in the Borough.

Disabled facility 
grants

 Awarded over £308,000 to 61 projects to facilitate independent living through 
adaptation of homes including level shower access, stair lifts and ramps.  

Community Housing 
Initiative

£250,000 Community Housing Fund targeting high quality homes for those with 
local connection where the cost of market housing beyond their reach. First two 
schemes (17 and 12 homes respectively) in early stage of design. It is proposed 
these will be constructed during 2020. Further opportunities are under review.

SeaMoor Lettings Launch of Council run housing letting agency, managing 6 homes for private 
landlords to local people at aff ordable rents.

Page 62



West Devon Borough Council - Annual Report 2018-2019

Food

Food
Inspector

3333300000

West Devon
Borough
Council

11

ENVIRONMENT Protecting, conserving and enhancing 
 our built and natural environment

Action  18/19 Progress

Joint Local Plan  On 26 March 2019 the Plymouth and South West Devon Joint Local Plan 
was formally adopted. The Plan had been subject to examination by two 
independent Inspectors appointed by the Secretary of State.  The Joint Local Plan 
is only the third joint plan in the country to include strategic and local policies, 
the fi rst to include a major English city and its neighbouring Councils, and has 
been prepared in the shortest time of any joint plan in the country.  

Waste and Recycling  Successfully awarded a new high performing waste, recycling and street cleaning 
contract.  Achieving savings of around £2 million during the lifetime of the 
contract.  The Council listened to what residents wanted  i.e. more items being 
recycled from the kerbside and a continued focus on keeping the beautiful 
Borough clean -  this will be delivered through the new arrangement at a more 
favourable price.

Tavistock Town 
Heritage Initiative

Contributed to this partnership initiative securing  monies from the Heritage 
Lottery Fund, restoring  4 listed buildings in 201 8/1 9 including  Kingdon House 
and improving surfacing around the Pannier Market. 

Garden Waste Club Realigned the Council’s garden waste service to better fi t with the growing 
season, by making annual subscriptions from April to March.  To date over 5,000 
residents have signed up to this fortnightly service.

26 March 2019
Plymouth & South West
Devon Joint Local Plan

was adopted 

Awarded a new high
performing waste,

recycling and street
cleaning contract 

£2
million

savings during
lifetime of contract

residents
have signed up 
to the Garden 

Waste Club 

5000+ 

Page 63



West Devon Borough Council - Annual Report 2018-2019

ENTERPRISE Creating places for enterprise to thrive 
 and business to grow

Action  18/19 Progress

Greater Dartmoor 
LEAF (Local Enterprise 
Action Fund)

 £249,748 funding awarded in the past 12 months to 12 projects which are 
expected to generate 14.4 FTE jobs. Projects include community buildings, 
premises refurbishments, equipment investment and farm modernisation.  
To date, 24.6 FTE jobs have been created in West Devon through this fund, 
employing local people.  In recognition of the good management of this fund 
and the volume of high quality projects in the Greater Dartmoor LEAF area, 
additional funding of £264 ,000 was awarded by Defra to extend the programme 
during 2018/19.

Business Support Funded a business support package which has delivered advice to   99 businesses, 
hosted  34 workshops and assisted businesses to recruit   102 employees. 

Teenage Market  Continued to build on this successful initiative by working in partnership with 
the Town Council to host a market in the newly restored Butchers Hall. Providing 
young people the opportunity to hone their business skills and show their 
entrepreneurial fl air.

Council owned 
premises

Achieved an average of  85% occupancy rate for all Council owned employment 
premises.

12

£249,748
awarded to 12 projects in the past 12 months

85%
Occupancy rate
for all Council owned employment premises

funded a business
support package 

local businesses
given advice

workshops
hosted

employees
recruited by
businesses

Business
Support

£

99

10234

Page 64



West Devon Borough Council - Annual Report 2018-2019

WELLBEING Supporting positive, safe and healthy lifestyles 
 and helping those most in need

Action  18/19 Progress

Community Safety 
Partnership

 Facilitated training on safeguarding to 95% taxi drivers.  Continued to work 
with all secondary schools in the Borough through workshops and theatre 
performances to address and raise awareness of community safety including 
drugs, Prevent and missing episodes linked to exploitation. Enabled Tavistock 
and Okehampton Matters meetings with local councillors to discuss anti-
social behaviour with the police and other safety specialists. Commissioned 
“Moorwatch” banners to signifi cantly reduce the amount of thefts from vehicles 
on the moor. Worked with the local fi re service to deliver the Phoenix Project to 
teach fi re and rescue skills.

Junior Life Skills Worked with  9 partners including the Police, RNLI, Fire Service, Dog Trust and 
Tavistock Rotary to present workshops to  600 children, to enable them to live 
safely and provide them with the skills to assess and respond appropriately to 
potentially dangerous situations.

Refugees  Member approval to welcome additional Syrian families beyond our original 
pledge, where properties are off ered.  Fifth family to arrive in early summer 2019 
for resettlement.  

Leisure Centres  All capital developments at Okehampton and Tavistock have been successfully 
completed, to a value of nearly £2 million. Despite all the building works and 
associated disruption, overall usage increased to 140,324 visits, including 824 
memberships, plus 757 swim school memberships.

 Pocket Park Scheme  Working with the local community, secured £25,000 of Pocket Park Scheme 
funding, to support a disabled play space in the Hatherleigh area.

13

swim school memberships

Capital developments 
completed at Okehampton 
& Tavistock to the value 
of nearly

£2m
140,324

visits
overall use up

includes
Memberships

824

757

Leisure Centres

Junior Life Skills
worked with

9 partners
to present 

workshops to 600
children

to enable them to live safely 
and provide them with the 
skills to assess and respond 
appropriately to potentially 
dangerous situations

Page 65



14

West Devon Borough Council - Annual Report 2018-2019

Next Steps 20 19-20

 Newly elected Council

Following the local elections in May 2019, the 
Council will embark on a thorough induction 
programme for newly elected Councillors.  
Induction will cover in detail the services off ered 
by the Council, the Corporate Strategy and the 
fi nancial and legislative challenges to be faced in 
2019/20 and beyond. A key task for Councillors 
will be to align services to the Council’s corporate 
themes and more importantly explain and consult 
with our residents and communities. This will 
be key in enabling the Council to deliver on its 
aspiration to ‘make a positive impact on the lives of 
local people by providing valued and easy to use 
services’. 

 Acting on the Peer Review

As a result of the Peer Review report, we will 
be reviewing the Council’s Senior Management 
structure to ensure that there is strategic capacity 
and direction to enable the Council to eff ectively 
plan for and deliver its aspirations into the medium 
term whilst at the same time generating longer-
term savings.  Staff  will be working with newly 
elected Councillors to strengthen the Council’s 
political governance arrangements and build on 
the success of the joint procurement for waste 
services to continue joint working with South Hams 
District Council.

We will continue to ensure there is an 
organisational focus on achieving fi nancial 
sustainability and develop new income streams to 
support the Council’s budget. We will continue to 
develop our existing partnerships and create new 
ones, to improve our support to individuals and 
communities, ensuring that we off er joined up, 
cost eff ective services so that, our  customers and 
communities have a clear understanding of where 
they can get guidance and support. 

 Customer Satisfaction

 There will be a relentless focus on improving 
customer satisfaction ahead of a follow-up 
satisfaction survey in 2019. We have set clear 
targets and aim to improve the Councils score in 
3 key measures;

 The overall benchmarking score.

 Getting it ‘right fi rst time’.

 And ‘keeping customers informed’.

We will do this by implementing service standards 
across the majority of our services. When customers 
contact us they will be advised of what they can 
expect to receive and by when. We will capture 
customers feedback and use this to drive service 
improvements. For major services we will look 
to provide on our website, how we are doing in 
meeting these standards, alongside feedback from 

 The Council has a proud tradition of innovation, we will continue to strive 
to achieve this whilst implementing the peer review recommendations, 
the customer satisfaction improvement plan and of course working with 
local communities to deliver against t he Council’s key corporate themes. 

NU CIO LC
RPRE IT SN EE

MEO SH NO MRI EV NN TE

UNM ITM IEO SC

BEL IL NE GW

Page 66



15

West Devon Borough Council - Annual Report 2018-2019

If you would like this publication 

in another format please contact: 

Communications Team on 

communications@swdevon.gov.uk 

or 01803 861368

our customers. When we look at service changes or 
new services, we will involve customers to ensure 
that we understand the ‘customer experience’ from 
their fi rst contact with us through to delivery.

As technology continues to develop, we will 
evaluate automation and artifi cial intelligence 
type solutions to see if they can improve our 
delivery or customer experience. We will continue 
to proactively market our online service off erings 
so that we reduce demand for services over the 
telephone and face to face. We will then use this 
extra staff  capacity to provide support to those 
customers with no or limited access to digital 
channels and to manage complex enquiries or 
problems.

Working with communities

We will continue our work with Town and Parish 
Councils and Neighbourhood Planning Groups 
to prepare Town Centre Strategies.  These will 
identify priorities and provide the basis for co-
ordinated action to ensure the role town centres 
play in meeting the needs of communities and their 
hinterland are maintained and enhanced.

Our fi nancial future

 The Council continues to face considerable 
fi nancial challenges as a result of uncertainty in the 
wider economy and constraints on public sector 
spending. The Council is still facing a forecast 
budget gap of £533,000 for 2020 onwards. The 
Council has had a 38% reduction in Government 
funding over the last four years, with no main 
Government Grant now being received (Revenue 
Support Grant has been reduced to Nil). This means 
that the Council needs to generate additional 
income to be able to carry on delivering our current 
range of services. In terms of sparsity, West Devon 
Borough Council is third at the top of the table of 
Councils who are covering the largest area with the 
smallest population.

The Council will continue to implement proposals 
to meet this fi nancial challenge; these will include 
progressing investment opportunities and income 
generating services as well as identifying further 
effi  ciencies to reduce costs for the benefi t of our 
community, fi nding smarter ways of doing things 
and making our assets work better for us in order to 
balance the budget next year.

Page 67



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 Confirmation of Minutes
	8 Annual Adoption of the Council's Constitution
	12a Council Tax Setting Panel - 22 February 2019
	12b Minutes - O&S Committee - 26 March 2019
	12c Minutes - O&S Committee - 2 April 2019
	12d Minutes DM&L Committee - 26 March 2019
	12e Minutes - DM&L Committee - 23 April 2019
	17 To receive the appointments from the Political Groups of the Members they have selected to serve on the Committees.  To appoint (if any) the requisite number of Members from the Members of the Council who, at the date of this meeting, are not members of a Political Group
	18 To appoint the Chairman and Vice-Chairman to the Committees of the Council for the ensuing year
	19 To appoint representatives to the list of Outside Bodies for the ensuing year
	20 To appoint representatives to the list of Other Groups for the ensuing year
	21 Annual Report
	AnnualReport_AppxA


